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Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
Tuesday 3 December 2009
Committee Room at 2.30pm

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.

* A period of 15 minutes has been provided to allow members of the public to raise questions.

» |n addition, after a report has been introduced by the relevant Portfolio Holder and/or officer, the
Chairman of the Committee will ask if any member of the public would like to speak in respect of
the matter and/or ask questions.

* Allindividual contributions will be limited to a period of 3 minutes — where there is an interested
group of objectors or supporters, a spokesperson should be appointed to speak on behaif of the
group.

= The public is advised that the Chairman has the right and discretion to control questions to
avoid disruption, repetition and to make best use of the meeting time.

AGENDA
PART A Pagels
1 Public question time — standard agenda item (15 minutes)
Members of the public are invited to put questions to the Committee through the

Chairman.

= Each individual questioner exercising the right to speak during this public question
time is restricted to speaking for a total of 3 minutes.

* Councillors also have the opportunity to ask questions of the Leader and/or
Portfolio Holders during this time slot whilst giving priority at this part of the agenda
to members of the pubilic.

The Chairman has the right and discretion to control question time to avoid disruption,
repetition, and to make best use of the meeting time

2 To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee held on 4-7
29 September 209.

3 To receive any apologies for absence.

Chief Executive: Mark Williams
Corporate Directors: Denise Lyon (Deputy Chief Executive) - Peter Jefis - Diccon Pearse - Karime Hassan



Page/s

4 To receive any declarations of interests relating to items on the agenda.
5 To consider any items which in the opinion of the Chairman, should be dealt with as
matters of urgency because of special circumstances.
{Note: Such circumstances need to be specified in the minutes; any Member wishing to
raise a matter under this item is requested to notify the Chief Executive in advance of the
meeting).
6 To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the press) have been
exciuded. There is one item which Officers recommend should be dealt with in this way.
Annual Audit Letter 2008 - 09 Grant Thornton 8-24
Use of Resources Action Plan 2009 Grant Thornton 25-71
implementation of internationai Financial Reporting Head of Finance 72-76
Standards (IFRS)
10 Health & Safety responsibilities of Elected Members Health and Safety 77-178
Manager
11  Response to ICT Action Plan — ICT Services internal Audit & 79-97
Governance Manager
12  Internal Audit activity report for the period 1st October 2009 internal Audit & 98 — 111+
to 31st December 2009, to include: Governance Manager
=  Audit Plan Monitoring to 31st December 2009
»  Audit Report Executive Summaries
13  Corporate Governance activity report for the period 1st Internal Audit & 112 - 122
October 2008 to 31st December 20089, including: Governance Manager
» Corporate Risk Management - CRMG Chairman's
Progress Report
» Corporate Governance Work Plan, incorporating the
progress on NFi and other Counter Fraud Initiatives,
and
= Annual Governance Statement Action Plan (Progress
Reports from Heads of Service and Directors)
14 The Vice Chairman to move the following:-
“that under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act
1972 the public (including the press) be excluded from the
meeting as exempt information, of the description set out on
the agenda, is likely to be disclosed and on balance the
public interest is in discussing this item in private session
(Part B).”
Part B
15 Results of Internal Para 3 Schedule 12A 123-125
Computer Audit Tender  information relating to the
Exercise financial or business affairs of
any particular person (including
the authority holding that
information).



Members please note:

You must declare any personal or prejudicial interests in an item whenever it becomes apparent that

you have an interest in the business being considered.

» Make sure you say the reason for your interest as this has to be included in the minutes.

» |f your interest is prejudicial you must leave the room unless you have obtained a dispensation from
the Council's Standards Committee or where Para 12(2) of the Code can be applied.
Para 12(2) allows a Member with a prejudicial interest to stay for the purpose of making
representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the business but only at
meetings where the public are aiso allowed to make representations. If you do remain, you must not
exercise decision-making functions or seek to improperly influence the decision; you must leave the
meeting room once you have made your representation.

= You also need to declare when you are subject to the party whip before the matter is discussed.

Getting to the Meeting - for the benefit of visitors

The entrance to the Council Offices is
located on Station Road, Sidmouth.
Parking is limited during normal working
hours but normally easily available for
evening meetings.

The following bus service stops outside

. the Council Offices on Station Road:
From Exmouth, Budleigh, Otterton and
Newton Poppleford - 157

.. The following buses all terminate at the

" Triangle in Sidmouth. From the Triangle,
walk up Station Road until you reach the
Council Offices (approximately ¥z mile).
From Exeter — 52A, 52B
From Honiton - 528
From Seaton — 52A
From Ottery St Mary — 379, 387

Please check your local timetable for times.

The Committee Suite has a separate entrance to the main building, located at the end of the visitor and
Councillor car park. The rooms are at ground level and easily accessible; there is also a toilet for
disabled users. The doors to the civic suite (meeting rooms) will be opened % hour before the start time
of the meeting. Councillors are reminded to bring their key fobs if they wish to access the area prior to
that time. A hearing loop system will be in operation in the Councii Chamber.

For a copy of this agenda in large print, please contact the Democratic
Services Team on 01395 517546
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EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of a Meeting of the
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
held at the Council Chamber, Knowle, Sidmouth,
on Tuesday 29 September 2009

Present: Councillors:

Ken Potter (Chairman)
Tim Wood (Vice-Chairman)

David Atkins
Peter Bowden
Bob Buxton
Chris Gibbings
Stephanie Jones

Also Present: Councillors:

Andrew Moulding - Portfolio Holder — Resources
Graham Troman — Member Champion for Data Quality

Barrie Morris, Grant Thornton
Kate Jefferies, Grant Thornton

Officers: Tanith Cox, Internal Audit and Governance Manager
Simon Davey, Head of Finance
Christopher Holland, Democratic Services Officer
Diccon Pearse, Corporate Director
Mark Williams, Chief Executive

Apologies: Councillors:
Derek Button
The meeting started at 4.30 pm and ended at 6.37 pm

Public Questions
No guestions were raised by members of the public or Councillors.

Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held on 25 June 2009
were confirmed and signed as a true record.

Exclusion of the Public

RESOLVED: that the classification given to the documents to be submitted to the
Committee, be confirmed, and that the reports relating to exempt
information, be dealt with under Part B.

Audit of Accounts 2008/09 - Annual Report by external Auditors

Members considered the report of Grant Thornton, the Council's external auditors, which
summarised the principal matters arising from their audit of the 2008/09 Statement of
Accounts, the Annual Governance Statement and the Use of Resources report.

It was noted that the issues raised had been discussed with the Head of Finance and other
appropriate staff and any adjustments or changes suggested had been accepted and
adopted by Officers. It was noted that the auditors had commended the Council for its
overall improvement in the accounts preparation process. The Council had made good
progress in improving the accuracy of its accounts and the auditors had been impressed
with the way the Finance team had effectively managed the adjustments and changes
recommended.
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Audit and Governance Committee, 29 September 2009

Audit of Accounts 2008/09 (cont’d)

It was noted that with regard to Pensions FRS 17 liability, there had been an
underestimation of £14.7 million for Devon. The Council's share of that difference had been
calculated as £358,000, a figure greater than that recorded in the published accounts using
the actuarial calculation of the percentage share of the assets. Members were satisfied with
the figures in the published accounts and agreed to not to revise it to the latest figure.

It was noted that although the Council had scored mostly 2's (performing adequately) with
regard to the Use of Resources report, this was largely due to new assessment criteria
being more demanding from 2008. Members commented that they hoped subsequent
reports would show an improvement in scoring achieved.

The Chairman thanked the Finance Team for their work in producing the Statement of
Accounts through what was a challenging period.

RESOLVED: 1) that the report be noted.

2) that the actuarial calculation method of the percentage share of
assets when cacuiating FRS liabiity be continued.

Leisure East Devon update

Members considered the report made by Councillor David Cox, the Council's nominated
representative on the Leisure East Devon Board and David Pagett, Chief Executive of
Leisure East Devon (LED). At the meeting held on 25 June 2009 Members had requested
that Leisure East Devon representatives clarify why the LED General Fund level was at
£600,000 when the Council was continuing to support the service financially.

It was noted that the Charity Commission had advised that the level of the General Fund
would be appropriate at £1.2 million which was 3 months cover. Members noted that since
the transition from a Council service to that of an ‘arms length' business, LED had
performed well but was now competing against private companies. Costs were increasing
and the closure of Rolle Colledge in Exmouth had significantly impacted on profitability.
Although money was being made by the organisation, funds were not high enough to
warrant the considerable investment on capital expenditure required. Buildings operated by
LED in many cases needed enlarging although the service provided by the Council's
Property Services team was excellent.

Members commented that with Local Government finances being continually under
pressure they were ultimately looking to reduce the level of fees and costs to the Council
and hoped this could be achieved as a result of the increasing profitability of LED.

RESOLVED: that the report be noted.

(Councilior Peter Bowden declared a Personal interest as he was a Board member of
Leisure East Devon, and remained in the Chamber to speak).

Internal Audit Activity Report for 1 July - 30 September 2009

The Committee considered the report of the Internal Audit and Governance Manager
relating to Internal Audit activity for the first quarter and second quarter and indicated where
audits were progressing well and identified those that had slipped against the internal audit
plan. Members noted the progress made and the audits that remained outstanding ard-The
Internal Audit & Governance manager emphasized that all of the outstanding audits had
been commenced during the 1%and 2" quarters and that she expected them to be
concluded before the next Audit & Governance Committee meeting.
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Audit and Governance Committee, 29 September 2009
internal Audit Activity Report for 1 July - 30 September 2009

The report also gave brief details on the staffing situation within the Council's Audit and
Governance section and gave an overview of the use of temporary contractors.

RESOLVED: that the following reports be noted and kept under review:
= Audit Plan Monitoring Document
= Audit Performance Indicators
= |nternal Audit Report Executive Summaries

Corporate Governance Activity Report for 1 July - 30 September 2009
Members of the Committee considered the report of the Internal Audit and Governance
Manager regarding the Corporate Governance Activity for the period 1 July to 30
September 2009, which outlined the work undertaken to ensure the Council's corporate
governance arrangements were effective, and in compliance with its local Code of
Corporate Governance.

RESOLVED: 1) that the Updated Corporate Risk Management Policy & Strategy be
approved

2) that the progress made so far on the Corporate Governance Work
Plan for 2008/09 be noted

3) that progress on the following reports be noted and kept under
review.

= Corporate Risk Management
s  Annual Governance Statement - Action Plan

Officer and Member Expenses Report
Members of the Committee considered the report of the Internal Audit and Governance
Manager which set out the Council's policies relating to Officer and Member expenses.

The Audit and Governance Committee requested the report at its meeting on the 25 June
2009. That meeting requested that a review of Councillor and Officer expenses be
undertaken as a high priority to make sure that the policy was appropriate, and that adequate
checks were in place. In testing the adequacy of the procedures relating to Members'
expenses a random sample of claims was examined.

Members agreed that future checking should be reasonable and commensurate with the
level of risk involved. This may invoive referring back for clarification with Members. Any
claims, which raised concerns, would be referred to the Monitoring Officer.

RESOLVED: 1) that the report be noted.

2) that Democratic Services continue to be responsible for
undertaking reasonable checks and autherising Members’ expense
claims.

3) that the Member Induction programme include how and what to
claim through Member Expenses.
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Audit and Governance Committee, 29 September 2009
Performance Indicators for Data Quality Checking
Members of the Committee considered the report of the internal Audit and Governance
Manager regarding a programme of Performance Indicators (Pls) relating to the 2008/09
year which had been drawn up for data quality checking by Internal Audit during April to
June 2008. The objective was to ensure that Performance Indicators were correct and that
their supporting documentation was adequate to satisfy the requirements of the Council’s
external review agencies.

Members noted that Internal Audit found that most Pls were either incorrect or needed
remedial action. It was noted however, that the recommendations made to Heads of
Service were accepted and would be implemented to ensure Pl reporting was accurate and
adequately documented in future years.

The Portfolio Holder, Resources commented that he was disappointed that the Council
appeared to have fallen behind with regard to data quality. He stressed that the data
required was essential in the running of the Council and that the Council must improve in

future.

RESOLVED: that the Committee supports the recommendations to improve the
quality of council data as outlined in the report.

Re-presentation of the 2008-09 Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual
Governance Statement and Associated Action Plan

Following the report earlier in the meeting by the Council’s external auditors, Grant
Thornton, Members of the Committee formally approved the Annual Statement of Accounts
2008-09, the Annual Governance Statement and Letter of Representation.

RESOLVED: 1) that the Annual Statement of Accounts 2008-09 be approved and
signed by the Chairman.

2) that the Annual Governance Statement 2008-09 be approved and
signed by the Chairman.

3) that the Letter of Representation be approved and signed by the
Chairman,

Exclusion of the Public
RESOLVED: that under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the
public (including the press) be excluded from the meeting as exempt
information is likely to be disclosed and on balance the public
interest is in discussing the items in private session (Part B).

Computer Audit and Internal Audit Tender

Members of the Committee considered the report of Internal Audit and Governance
Manager regarding the award criteria and methodology for a future Computer Audit Tender
and an Internal Audit Tender.

RESOLVED: 1) that the award criteria and methodology for a future Computer Audit
Tender be approved.

2) that the award criteria and methodology for a future Internal Audit
Tender be approved.

CREIEAN: o g st bt Ehabe - s o R G A S e L B s S S S
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East Revon Oistrict Council
Annual Audit Letter 2008-08

1

Introduction and key messages

Purpose of this letter

1.1

This annual audit letter summarises the key issues arising from the work that we
have carried out at East Devon District Council ("the Council’) during our 2008-09
andit. The letter is written in an accessible style, designed to communicate our key
messages to the Council and external stakeholders, including members of the public.
The letter will be published on the Council's website.

Responsibilities of the external auditors and the Council

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

This letter has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission (www.audit-
commussion.gov.uk).

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit
Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public
bodies in England. As external auditors, we have a broad remit covering finance
and governance matters.

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice
issued by the Audit Commission and includes nationally prescribed and locally
determined work. Our work considers the Council's key risks when reaching our
Code of Audit Practice conclusions.

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these
responsibilities.

What this letter covers

1.6

1.7

This letter covers our 2008-09 Code audit, including key messages and conclusions
from our work in:
¢ auditing the 2008-09 year end accounts (section 2); and

e  assessing the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of its resources (section 3).

We have not repeated the recommendations agreed with the Council during the year
in this letter. A list of the reports that contain these recommendations can be found
at appendix A. Appendix B sets out our actual and budgeted fees for 2008-09.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved i
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East Devon District Council
Annual Audit Letter 2008-09

Key messages for the Council

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

We issued an unqualified audit opinion on the Council's financial statements. We
commended the Council for their overall improvement in the accounts preparation
process. Whilst a number of amendments were identified, the Council has made
good progress to improve the accuracy of their accounts, and to ensure that these
amendments were processed in 2008-09. We will continue to work with the Council

to continue this progress.

We issued a qualified audit opinion on the Council's arrangements to secure value
for money. Whilst in the main, the Council performed well under this new
assessment, the arrangements around risk management and internal control were not
adequate. The key factors contributing to this were:

the corporate risk register has not been formally updated or monitored by
members during the 2008-09 financial year;

there 1s imited proactive fraud work carried out due to the resource pressures
faced by Internal Audit; and

there have been continued problems faced in delivering the internal audit service
due to resourcing issues.

For 2009-10, the Council needs to focus on the areas for improvement as well as
build on its use of tesources scores and increase the focus on demonstrating clear

outcomes.

The context for these key messages can be found in this letter and management has
agreed to implement our recommendations in these areas.

7 2008 Grant Thornton Uik LLP. All rights reserved
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East Devon District Councit
Annual Audit Letter 2008-09

2

Audit of accounts

Introduction

22

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2008-09 accounts on
29 September 2009, in line with statutory requirements. Our opinion confirms that
the accounts for the Council present fairly the financial position of the Council as at
31 March 2009 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

Prior to giving our opinion on the accounts, we are required to report significant
matters arising from the audit to "those charged with governance” (which is the
Audit and Governance Committee at the Council). We presented our annual report
to those charged with governance to the Audit and Governance Committee on 29
September 2009 and summarise only the key messages in this letter.

Audit of the accounts

23

2.4

2.5

2.6

We commended the Council for their overall improvement in the accounts
preparation process. Whilst a number of amendments were identfied, the Council
has made good progtess to improve the accuracy of their accounts, and to ensure
that these amendments were processed in 2008-09. We will continue to work with
the Council to continue this progress.

The key recommendations identified from our work relate to classification within
vatious statements, affecting working capital, the statement of movement in general
fund balance and cash flow statement. In addition the disclosure of a number of
notes to the accounts could be improved and we are working with the Council to
support continued progress in this area.

As a result of our audit, as reported to those charged with governance, a number of
amendments were made to the accounts prior to their re-approval by the Audit and
Governance Committee on 29 September 2009. In particular:

reclassification of £3.2 million from earmarked reserves to the general fund for
balances which did not meet the accounting requitements of earmarked reserves;

decrease in expenditure of £0.25 million for a loan which had been treated as
expenditure; and

revision of the cash flow statement which contained a number of errors.

Our annual report to those charged with governance reported one unadjusted item
which would have decreased the deficit in the income and expenditure account by
£358,000, as this did not materially affect the accounts. This related to the valuaton
of the pension assets in the pension fund administered by Devon County Council,
whose auditors confirmed the estimated valuation performed by the actuary to be

2 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Al rights reserved, Z
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East Devon District Council
Annual Audit Letter 2008-09

understated. Due to the difference in timing between the preparation of the
accounts and our subsequent audit and the availability of information in relation to
the pension fund, it is not unusual for a difference to arise as finalised informaton 1s
available 1n ome for the audit.

Financial performance

2.7

2.8

2.10

The Council has managed 2 challenging financial position during 2008-09, with
reducing income across a number of services during the economic downturn. The
Council delivered its general fund service plans for a total net cost of £54.1 million
which included a reduction in asset values of £34.3 million. Net expenditure on
services was £15.6 million and the general fund balance increased from £3.7 million
to £7.5 mullion as at 31 March 2009, principally as a result of a reclassification of
other reserves.. This balance 1s equivalent to 37% of the ornginal net budget for
2008-09.

The budget for net expenditure on services was set for the 2009-10 financial year at
£14.7 million by the Council in February 2009.

Our review of the latest quarterly revenue outturn report, to the end of month six
(September 2009), shows the Council is forecasting an under spend of £576,000
against this budget. This forecast underspend primarily relates to:

additional grant income for benefits administraton of £109,000; and

pay award savings of £198,000.

The estimated general fund balance at 31 March 2010 is £3.0 million after use of
earmarked reserves of £1.8 million. However, this does not take account of the

transfer of reserves to the general fund as a result of our accounts audit. We will
continue to monitor the Council's financial standing and its performance against
budgets throughout the year.

Financial systems

2.11

2.12

213

We undertake sufficient work on key financial controls for the purpose of designing
our programme of work for the financial statements audit. Qur evaluation of the
Council's key financial control systems did not identify any control issues that
present a material risk to the accuracy of the financial statements.

We completed a full review of Internal Audit in 2007-08, to assess its overall level of
compliance against the CIPFA internal audit standards, and refreshed this in
2008-09. Whilst the overall arrangements in place for the delivery of the Internal
Audit programme are considered to be meeting minimum standards, there are a
number of significant opportunities for improvement which have been 1dentfied, in
particular the achievement of the Internal Audit Plan.

Our information systems specialist performed a high level review of the general IT

control environment, as part of the overall review of the internal control system, and
concluded that, there are no material weaknesses which could adversely impact on

2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved
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East Dovan District Council
Annual Audit Letter 2008-09

2.14

the council's financial statements. No material weaknesses have been identified
through our review of the key financial systems.

We followed up the action plan arising from the 2007-08 interim and final accounts
audits and concluded that good progress had been made in addressing previous
audit recommendations.

Annual Governance Statement

2.15

We have reviewed the Council's arrangements and process for compiling the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS). In additdon, we read the AGS and consider whether
the statement is in accordance with our knowledge of the Council. Qur review has
confirmed the statement to be satisfactory although would be enhanced through the
disclosure or weaknesses in relation to accuracy of performance indicators following
completion of internal audit work in this area and re-inclusion of licensing
administration from the 2007-08 AGS action plan which had not been implemented.
In addition we requested further disclosure around the weakness in risk management
arrangements. All of the changes were processed in the final version of the AGS
presented approved in September 2009.

Dealing with the public.

216

We have received a number of queries from local residents and interested parties
throughout the year and have undertaken appropriate work in order to consider any
issues that we considered were relevant to our statutory responsibilities. We
reported as part of last year's annual audit letter issues relating to the local
government review and have been satisfied that the Council has acted appropriately
following our comments. There have been no other issues that impacted upon our
final accounts work or audit opinion for 2008-09.

International Financial Reporting Standards

217

2.18

2.19

From 2010-11, the Council is required to prepare their Statement of Accounts under
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) based on an IFRS Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting prepared by CIPFA. We have had imitial
discusstons with relevant officers regarding the Councils readiness for conversion to
IFRS and the preparation they have undertaken to date.

We ate pleased to note that the Council are making positive steps towards
conversion and in working in partnership with other Council's locally through the
Devon Accounting Group for IFRS implementation, led by Devon County Council.
However the Council has not presented an action plan or set out the potential
implications of IFRS to the Audit and Governance Committee, or any other
committee.

We have will continue to lizise with Council officers during the year to provide
advice and support to the Council on the required accounting treatments under
IFRS, where this will not compromise our independence, through sharing our
experiences of [FRS transition from other public sector bodies and providing our
views on the Council's interpretation of the draft IFRS Code of Practice, which will

% 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 4
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form the basis for the preparation of the Council's first set of IFRS accounts in
2010-11.

Certification of grant claims

2.20 In addition to our Code responsibilities, we are required, acting as agents of the
Audit Commission, to certify a the Council’s grant claims and returns, in accordance
with the following arrangements:

®  claims below £100,000 are not subject to certification;

®  claims between £100,000 and £500,000 are subject to a reduced, ‘light —
touch’ certification; and

®  clams over £500,000 will be subject to a certification approach determined
by the auditor’s assessment of the control environment and management
preparation of claims.

2.21 We have already completed the certificaion of the majority of claims for the
Council relating to the 2008-09 financial year and have met all government
department deadlines set under these arrangements so far. Our certification work is
expected to be complete by the end of December 2009 after which we will prepare a
separate grants report, summansing issues from the 2008-09 work, to facilitate
continuous Umnprovement.

222 Based on the work completed to date, the Council has shown a significant
improvement in the accuracy of the claims submutted and, as a result, there has been
a reduction in both amendments to claims and qualifications.

1 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
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East Devon Bistrict Council
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3

Use of resources

Introduction

31

We issued our annual VFM conclusion on 29 September 2009, at the same time as
our accounts opinion, in line with statutory requirements. We concluded that, for
2008-09, the Council made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2009, with the
exception of managing risks and maintaining a sound system of internal control.

2008-09 Value for money conclusion and use of resources assessment

3.2

3.3

3.4

o

Auditors inform and limit their value for money conclusion by reference to relevant
criteria under the Audit Commission Code of Audit Practice. These criteria cover
particular areas of audited bodies’ arrangements specified by the Audit Commission
under the Code of Audit Practice. From 2008-09, the key lines of enquiry for the
scored use of resources assessment also form the criteria for the value for money
conclusion, together with any other relevant knowledge that we had gathered as a
part of our audit. Failure to achieve an 'adequate’ assessment in any one or more
area results in either an "except for" or "adverse” overall conclusion, in respect of
those specific areas.

We assessed the Council as achieving level two in all of the areas covered by our use
of resources assessment and that resulted in 'adequate’ conclusions for the relevant
criteria within our overall value for money conclusion, with the exception of
managing risks and maintain a sound system of internal control which received an
‘inadequate’ conclusion.

The key factors contributing to this were:

the corporate risk register has not been formally updated or monitored by
members during the 2008-09 financial year;

there is limited proactive fraud work carried out due to the resource pressures
faced by Internal Audit; and

there have been continued problems faced in delivering the internal audit service
due to resourcing issues.

These assessments, and their impact on the overall 2008-09 conclusion for the
Council, are summarised in table 1.

(=4

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP, All rights reserved
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Table 1: Components of value for money conclusion 2008-09

Key for KLoE scores:
1 - Below minimum
requirements -
inadequate
perfarmance

2 - Meets minimum
reguirements —
performs adequately
3 - Exceeds minimum
requirements —
performs well

4 - Significantly
exceeds minimum
requirements —

performing
excellently

Note that KLoE 3.1
‘Managing natural
resources’ and KLoE
3.2 'Managing assets'
were not applicable
to the Council for
2008-09

3.5

3.6

Area

Source of
evidence

Use of
resources
Score

Arrangements
adequate?

Does the organisation plan its finances
effecuvely to deliver its strategic
priorites and secure sound financial
health?

KloE 1.1

2

Yes

Does the organisation have a sound
understanding of its costs and
performance and achieve efficiencies in
its activities?

KloE 1.2

2

Yes

Is the organisation’s financial reporting
timely, reltable and does it meet the of
internal users, stakeholders and local
people?

KloE 1.3

[\

Yes

Does the organisation commussion and
procure quality services and supplies,
tailored to local needs, to deliver
sustainable outcomes and value for
money?

KLoE 2.1

3

Yes

Does the organisation produce relevant
and reliable data and informaton to
support decision making and manage
performance?

KioE 22

(RS

Yes

Does the organisation promote and
demonstrate the principles and values
of good governance?

KLoE 2.3

[

Yes

Does the organisation manage 1ts risks
and maintain a sound system of internal
control?

KioE 24

Does the organisation plan, organise
and develop its workforce effectively to
support the achievement of its strategic
priorities?

KIoE 3.3

]

The provisional findings from our 2008-09 use of resources assessment were
reported to the Audit and Governance Committee in September 2009, as part of our
report to those charged with governance (ISA260 report). We are pleased to report
that, subsequent to our ISA260 report, these provision scotes were confirmed
following the Audit Commission's national quality control.

The Council's use of tesources scores in the three themes, drawn from the scores

above, are summarised in table 2.

2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Al rights reserved
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Table 2: Use of resources scotes

37

3.8

39

39

3.10

Theme 2009

1 Managing finances 2

2 Governing the bustness 2
2

3 Managing resources

We assessed the Council as performing adequately (level two) in the 'managing
finances', 'governing the business' and 'managing resources' themes. These scores
are representative of the assessments of Councils nadonally. This is a result of the
new, more demanding assessment criteria which require, amongst other things,
demonstration of improved service delivery outcomes, rather than simply robust
arrangements and improved outputs, which allowed Councils to achieve higher
assessment ratings in the past.

The key achievements for the Council identified in our assessment, include:

e therc are established performance management arrangements in place with
regular reporting to members with performance data being used effectively
to make decisions about future service delivery;

® a1 commitment to improve the quality of services provided across the
Council, by implementing systems reviews in underperforming setvices and
identifying opportunities to develop existing processes; and

®  members provide effective challenge to the Council and, through the use of
personal development plans, are developing the skills that are needed to
better perform their individual roles.

The key actons for the Councll, arising from our assessment, include:

®  demonstrating integration of corporate documents with clearer links to the
corporate priorities and showing how individual services contribute to the
delivery of corporate priorities;

e  developing robust arrangements for risk management, including a corporate
risk register and consideration of partnership risks; and

° improving the management of the workforce, in particular that imtiatives to
reduce staff absences are effective.

We have agreed an action plan with management to implement these and our other
detailed recommendations and will follow-up the progress on the implementation of
these as part of our 2009-10 audit.

A summary of our detailed finding for each theme area is provided in the following
paragraphs. This highlights the key areas, or characteristics, where the Council is

2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP  Ali rights reserved
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performing well as well as those areas where it needs to focus in order for it to
improve its assessment.

Managing finances

311

313

314

This theme focuses on sound strategic and financial management, that is, whether
the Council plans its finances to deliver its priorities, the extent to which it has a
sound understanding of its costs and performance, and whether its financial
reporting is timely, reliable and meets the needs of its population. We assessed the
council as achieving level two, adequate performance, in this area.

The Council's corporate strategy sets out its seven corporate priorities which were
developed in consultation with stakeholders and interested parties. The strategy is
supported by service plans, although links between the strategy and service plans
could be made clearer through the introduction of corporate priority delivery plans,
which demonstrate how the work and achievements of services contribute to the
delivery of the priorities. The resources to deliver the strategy are set out in the
financial strategy and annual budgets, as well as in the service plans, which is
underpinned by a robust budget setting process.

There is a sound understanding of the performance of setvices in priority areas, and
petformance information s presented to members on a quarterly basis. This has
informed the systems reviews that have been focussed on those areas where
petformance improvements are required. These service reviews have been
undertaken within the planning, benefits and housing service areas and, whilst the
benefits have not yet been fully realised, there has been a considerable improvement
in performance. The Council has a developed a challenging three year efficiency
target for the pertod 2008-11 and has successfully delivered the first years targets.
The Council will need to continue its robust budget and planning approach if the
full target 1s to be achieved.

Each month, budget monitoring reports are presented to the Executive Board and
include explanations for variances identified in service areas. Following feedback
from members, the Council have formed a review group to revise the format and
content of these budget monitoring reports and are using this opportunity to better
integrate financial and performance information to aid the decision making process
and ensure funds are allocated to priority areas. The Council has made good
progtess in improving the overall quality of the statement of accounts and the
process for preparing them, both in terms of their accuracy and working papers
which support them.

Governing the business

315

This theme focuses on strategic commissioning and good governance, in particular
how well the Council governs itself and commissions services that provide value for
money and deliver better outcomes for local people. We assessed the Council as
achieving an overall theme score of two, adequate performance.

20609 Grant Thornten UK LLP. Al rights reserved.
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316

317

3.18

319

The Council's corporate priorities have been developed in consultation with local
stakeholders and it is working well to deliver these priotities through commissioning
and procuring the appropriate services required. Where these are directly within the
control of the Council, it can demonstrate how processes ate resulting in improved
outcomes in key services and, following the systems reviews performed in priority
areas during the year, has shown that significant improvement in performance can
be delivered. In addition, the Council procures a high proportion of goods and
services locally, which also supports its priority around thriving economy.

There are established arrangements in place for performance management, with all
performance indicators supporting corporate priorities being reported to members
quarterly and the top 20, which are based on risk and priority, being updated and
reported monthly. A review of indicators in the bottom quartile has informed the
decision as to which services were selected for a detaled systems review and the
Council is developing integrated finance and performance reporting to better inform
short and medium term decision making. Internal audit test a sample of
performance indicators each year to verify the accuracy of data reported by the
Council.

The Council has robust governance arrangements in place, setting out the role and
responsibilities of individuals and committees in its corporate strategy, which 1s
published on the website, and through codes of conduct. Personal development
plans have been introduced and are being effectively used in member development
and members provide effective challenge to the Council. There are arrangements in
place for whistle blowing and recciving complaints which have operated effectively
during the year. A review of partnership arrangements has been started and this has
highlighted the need for further work to clarify the Council's role across the range of
partnerships that it is involved within, the resources contributed, the governance and
performance monitoring atrangements.

Arrangements for risk management and internal control have deteriorated since
2007-08. The corporate risk register has not been formally updated or actively
monitored by members, such as the Audit and Governance Committee, during
2008-09. The Council's internal audit service has continued to experience resourcing
1ssues and this has impacted on the delivery of the internal audit plan for the year,
resulting in a reduced programme of work. Whilst an anti-fraud forum as been
established, there has been limited proactive counter fraud and corruption work
performed due to the pressures face by internal audit. These issues resulted in a
score of one for KLoE 2.4 and a qualified use of resources conclusion in respect of
the arrangements for risk management and internal control, as reported and
discussed with the Council in September 2009. We recognise that significant actions
are now being taken to address these areas of concern

Managing resources

3.20

This theme considers areas which have not, previously, been assessed on their own
in detail, the use of natural resources and capital assets and wotkforce. As a result,
we have only considered the arrangements and outcomes in place to ensure the
Council effectively manages its wotkforce, which we assessed as being adequate,
level two.

D 2009 Grant Thorrion UK LLP. Al rights reserved
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321

3.22

Use of natural resources and strategic asset management were not assessed in 2008-
09 because the Audit Commussion has prescribed that the introduction of themes
within managing resources themes will be phased over three years.

The Council has a workforce and development strategy, which is supported by a
range to human resources policies and succession planning is incorporated into the
service planning process. Staff turnover remains low, although the absence rate is
the highest in Devon and above the national average, with particularly high long
term absence rates. In the Best Councils survey, East Devon achieved a top 25 for
place for the sector 'Fair Deal', which assesses whether staff are happy with their
salary and benefits, but in the council has yet to achieve level two in the equalities
standards.

Looking ahead

3.23

3.24

We agreed our indicative 2009-10 audit fee with the Council in March 2009. Our fee
letter set out our mitial assessment of the local risk based use of resources work we
plan to carry out to support our VFM conclusion. This comprised:

®  achallenging revenue budget with reduced government funding, reduced
income streams and increasing demand for services;

®  whether the constitution and other key regulatory documents to remain fit-
for-purpose;

° effectiveness of the internal audit functon as a result of staffing issues; and

®  revised processes to document and monitor corporate risks.

Through discussions with the Council, we will confirm whether these risks remain
relevant, and whether any new risks need to be considered as part of our use of
resources work.

2 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP Al rights reserved
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4 Closing remarks
Introduction
4.1 This letter was agreed with the Chief Executive and Corporate Director and

presented to Audit and Governance Committee on 3 December 2009,

4.2 We would like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation for the assistance
and cooperation provided during the course of the audit. Our aim is to deliver a
high standard of audit, which makes a positve and practical contribution that
supports the Council's own agenda. We recognise the value of your co-operation
and support.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
November 2009

212009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
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Appendix A 2008-09 reports issued

Report Date issued
Audit plan March 2008
SN June 2009
Annualvr;c:tt to those cha;ge_c_lmnth governance September 2009
Use of Resources - Dccen:l;_e;_.;(:.)agm
Annual audit letter December 2009
Grants report Due January 2010

) 2609 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved
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Appendix B Audit and other fees 2008-09

Audit area Budget Actual
2008-09 2008-09
Financial statements * £62,520 £62,520
VFM conclusion / Use of :(;(;UICCS ,{39,400_ £39,400
Total Code of Practice fee £101,900 £101,900
Certfication of grant claims and returns £26,000 £LTBA
All other serviccs- (paid to the Audit Commission) £5,972 £5,972

€) 2008 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
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1 Key messages

1.1 Context

Under the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice we are required to reach a conclusion on
whether East Devon District Council (the Council) has put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness 1n its use of resources {the "VFM conclusion"). This report
presents the results of our value for money and use of resources work in 2008-09. We have
separately 1ssued our annual report to those charged with governance (ISA260). The key messages
from both of these reports will be summarised in the annual audit letter.

We described in our Audit Plan (March 2008) the areas of audit work that provide us with the
assurance that contributes to our annual VFM conclusion. This report sets out our findings from
these pieces of work:

®  our assessment of the Council Use of Resources (UoR), using the three themes within the
Audit Commission's new assessment framework themes and Key Lines of Enquiry (KLoE");

*  specific work on locally identified audit risks, which contribute to our VFM conclusion by
feeding into our UoR assessment scores; and

. risk-based spot check wotk to assess the quality of data undetlying a small sample of key
performance indicators.

In 2009, the Audit Commussion introduced a new framework and methodology for Use of
Resources (UoR) assessments across local government, police forces, fire authonties and primary
care trusts. The new framework emphasises outcomes over processes, and brings new areas into the
assessment such as environmental and workforce management. The new assessment presents a
more robust challenge than the old framework, based on different scoring criteria. It should be
noted, therefore, that changes from prior year scores do not necessanly indicate changes in
performance. Further detail about the new framework and the link to Comprehensive Area
Assessment (CAA) are set out in appendix B.

1.2 Key messages

The new use of resources assessment considers how well the Council is managing and using its
resources to deliver value for money and better and sustainable outcomes for local people. The
assessment comprises three themes that focus on sound and strategtc financial management;
strategic commissioning and good governance; and the management of natural resources, assets and

people
The Council's UoR scores in these three themes are summarised in the table below. A score of 1

indicates inadequate performance, and a score of 4 indicates excellent performance. For a full
explanation of scoring criteria, please see appendix C.
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‘Table 1: UoR scores

Theme 2008-09 score

1 Managing finances 2 E
2 Governing the business 2
3 Managing resources 2 5

This shows that we have assessed the Council as performing adequately across the three themes of
managing 1ts finances, governing the business and managing its resources. Within these themes, we
have identified areas of particularly strong performance and some areas where further improvement
1s required. In partcular, we assessed the Councils arrangements for managing risks and maintaining
a sound system of internal control as inadequate due to some specific concerns around risk
management and the delivery of internal audit. We acknowledge that the Council is taking action to
address these areas of concern which should enable an improved assessment in future years.

The key achievements for the Council identified in our assessment, include:

) there are established performance management arrangements in place with regular reporting
to members with performance data being used effectively to make decisions about future
service delivery;

. a commitment to improve the quality of services provided across the Council, by
implementing systems reviews in underperforming services and identifying opportunities to
develop existing processes; and

. members provide effective challenge to the Council and, through the use of personal
development plans, are developing the skills that are nceded to better perform their
individual roles.

The key actions for the Council, arising from our assessment, include:

] demonstrating integration of corporate documents with clearer links to the corporate
priorities and showing how individual services contribute to the delivery of corporate
priorities;

¢  developing robust arrangements for risk management, including a corporate sk register and
consideration of partnership risks; and

- improving the management of the workforce, in particular that initiatives to reduce staff absences are
effective.
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1.3 Engagement in the assessment process

We are pleased that officers of the Council engaged effectively during the assessment process in
2008-09. The Council provided a comprehenstve self assessment at the outset of our work and this
was supported by a number of meetungs and background evidence. Our Use of Resources
workshops were well attended by officers with constructive and useful discussion.

1.4 Links to Comprehensive Performance Assessment

The findings from our work are also considered by the Audit Commission's Comprehensive Area
Assessment (CAA) Lead along with their own work on ‘Managing Performance’ to determine the
overall Organisational Assessment. This assessment then feeds into the CAA for the aren as a
whole. The CAA work 1s reported separately by the Audit Commission and, as such, is not repeated
within this report. However, we have held discussions with the CAA Lead to ensure that our work
and judgements are consistent with their own and represent a full and fair reflection of the Council.

1.5 Next steps

We will continue to work with the Council during the year to help prepare for the 2009-10 Use of
Resources assessment. For the second year of this assessment, the Council needs to build on the
evidence base they have, focussing on the delivery of outcomes for the local population and
improvements in relation to internal control and risk management. For further details on next year's
assessment, please see appendix D.

The recommendations arising from our review are set out in appendix A. We would like to take the
opportunity to remind the Audit Commuttee of the need to monitor implementation of these.

1.6 Use of this report

This report has been prepared solely for use by the Council to discharge our responsibilities under
the Audit Commission Code of Audit Practice and relevant auditing standards and should not be
used for any other purpose. No responsibility is assumed by us to any other person.

This report includes only those matters that have come to our attention as a result of performance
of the audit. An audit of Use of Resources is not designed to identfy all matters that may be
relevant to those charged with governance. Accordingly the audit does not ordinarily idenufy all
such matters.

1.7 Acknowledgements

We would like to record our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance provided to us by the
Councll's management, officers and members during the course of our audit.
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2 Summary of findings

2.1 Introduction

In carrying out our audit work we comply with the statutory requirements governing our duties, set
out in the Audit Commuission Act 1998, in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice (the Code).
The Code requires us to issue a conclusion on whether East Devon District Council has proper
arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources
(the "VFM conclusion"). The UoR assessment forms the backbone of this process.

The UoR Key Lines of Enquiry (I{LoEs} are prescribed by the Audit Commission and applied at all
councils, police forces, fire authorities and NHS PCTs. However, as our audits are tailored to local
nsks, we specifically identify and consider certain areas of greater audit risk for each organisation, as
part of the UoR assessment. For the Council, we identified a number of areas for further
consideration in our Audit Plan, which we have considered during the course of this work.

2.2 Approach to the audit

The use of resources work was undertaken between March and July 2009, based on the KLOE
framework prescribed by the Audit Commission. Our work was based on a review of the Council's
imtial self assessment and supporting evidence as well as discussions with senior management and
officers. We presented our provisional assessment to management at the Council in June 2009,
providing an opportunity for any further evidence, based on these preliminary discussions, to be
made available to us prior to forming our final judgements in August 2009.
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2.3 2008-09 UoR assessment

The 2008-09 KLOE and theme scores are shown 1n the table below.

Table 2: UoR theme and KLoE scores

Theme / KLOE _ Score
Theme 1 - Managing finances 2

1.1 Financial planning 2

1.2 Understanding costs 2

13 Financial reporting 2
Theme 2 - Governing the business 2

2.1 Commissioning and procurement 2

22 Use of data 2

23 Good governance 2 N
24 Internal control 1

3.1 Use of natural resources Not assessed
32 Asset management Not assessed
33 Workforce management 2

Please note:

. some KLOEs have an overriding impact on theme scores - see Appendix C for more details
of scoring criteria and arrangements; and

e different KLOE:s are specified for assessment each year and across types of organusation.
See appendix D for details.

2.4 2008-09 VfM conclusion

Under the Code of Audit Practice {the Code), auditors have a responsibility to conclude whether the
audited body has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effecaveness
in its use of resources. This conclusion is the value for money (VFM) conclusion. Section 3 of the
Code sets out the scope of these arrangements and the way in which auditors will undertake their

work.

Auditors inform and limit their VFM conclusion by reference to relevant criteria. These criteria
cover particular areas of audited bodies’ arrangements, specified by the Commussion under the
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Code. From 2008-09, the KLOE for the scored use of resources assessment also form the criteria
for the VFM conclusion. The Commission will specify each year which of the use of resources
KLOE will form the relevant critenia for the VFM conclusion at each type of audited body.

Auditors address a ‘yes’ or ‘no’ question for each criterion — that is the audited body either has
proper arrangements or it does not. A ‘no’ judgement will be equivalent to level 1 performance for
the use of resources assessment, and a ‘yes’ judgement will be equivalent to level 2 performance or
above. Criteria with a ‘no’ judgement will automatically be reassessed in the following year
regardless of whether or not they are specified.

For bodies subject to a scored use of resources assessment for CAA, the KLOE forming the
relevant criteria for the 2008-09 and 2009-10 VFM conclusion are those specified at Appendix D.

On the basis of the KLOE scores assessed in 2008-09 for East Devon District Council, we provided
a qualified use of resources conclusion on 29 September 2009, because adequate arrangements were
not in place to manage risks and maintain a sound system of internal control

The key reasons why we have assessed risk management and internal control as inadequate are set
out below. We acknowledge that the Council is taking action to address these areas:

e  the corporate nsk register has not been formally updated or monitored by the Audit and
Governance Committee, or any other member committee, during the 2008-09 financial year;

e there 1s limited proactive fraud work carried out due to the resource pressures faced by
Internal Audit; and

o there have been continued problems faced in delivering the internal audit service due to
resourcing issues.

The key findings in each of the KLOEs, and areas for improvement, are set out in the sections 3 to
5.
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3 Managing finances

31 Theme summary

This theme focuses on sound strategic and financial management, that is, whether the Council plans
its finances to deliver its priorities, the extent to which it has a sound understanding of its costs and
performance, and whether its financial reporting is timely, reliable and meets the needs of its
population.

1.1 Financial planning 2
1.2 Understanding costs 2
1.3 Financial repornng 2

The Councll's corporate strategy sets out its seven corporate prionities which were developed n
consultation with stakeholders and interested partics. The strategy is supported by service plans,
although links between the strategy and service plans could be made clearer through the
introduction of corporate priority delivery plans, which demonstrate how the work and
achievements of services contribute to the delivery of the priorittes. The resources to deliver the
strategy are set out in the financial strategy and annual budgets, as well as in the service plans, which
is underpinned by a robust budget setting process.

There is 2 sound understanding of the performance of services in priority areas, and performance
information is presented to members on a quarterly basis. This has informed the systems reviews
that have been focussed on those areas where performance improvements are required. These
service reviews have been undertaken within the planning, benefits and housing service areas and,
whilst the benefits have not yet been fully realised, there has been a considerable improvement in
performance. The Council has a developed a challenging three year efficiency target for the period
2008-11 and has successfully delivered the first years targets. The Council will need to continue its
robust budget and planning approach if the full target is to be achieved.

Each month, budget monitoring reports are presented to the Executive Board and include
explanations for variances identified in service areas. Following feedback from members, the
Council have formed a review group to revise the format and content of these budget momitoring
reports and are using this opportunity to better integrate financial and performance information to
aid the decision making process and ensure funds are allocated to priority areas. The Council has
made good progress in improving the overall quality of the statement of accounts and the process
for preparing them, both in terms of their accuracy and working papers which support them.
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KLOE 1.1 - Does the organisation plan its finances effectively to deliver its
strategic priorities and secure sound financial health?

The KLOE seeks to establish whether the Council integrates its financial planning with its strategic
and service planning processes on a medium to long-term basis, whether it engages local
communities and other stakeholders in the financial planning process, how it manages spending
within available resources and whether it is financially sound over the medium term. It also seeks to
establish whether the Council recognises individual and collective responsibilities for financial
management and values and is developing approptiate financial skills.

The Council's corporate strategy is the key document that outlines the vision and prioriucs of the
Council. The current strategy was developed in 2007, as part of a reprioritisation exercise, and was
refreshed in 2008 to reflect the change in the economic climate. The Council's priorites were
developed in consultation with focus groups and with parish and town councils.

The corporate business plan is an extensive document, expanding on the corporate strategy. It sets
out how the local sustainable community plan links to other strategies, including the corporate
strategy, as well as how the Council's priorities relate to the East Devon wide priorites.

The 2008-09 annual budget was set to deliver the existing corporate strategy. The Council has a
robust budget setting process in place, linked to financial planning through the service plans and
service planning days. As well as delivering core services, the budget also established a contingency
fund that could be used to respond to additonal areas which were not included within the baseline
budget. The use of this additional funding was constdered on a case by case basis by the Scrutny
and Oversight Committee to ensure that funds were allocated to high priority areas. While this
element of the budget demonstrates that the Council allocates resources to high priorides, at a
service level there 1s imited evidence of the Council moving resources from low to higher priority
areas where the budget available cannot cover all requested spend.

In addition at the year end, of the £12.2 million general reserve accumulated from previous years
only £372,000 had been spent to support the 2008-09 revenue budget. The Council should seck to
avoid holding large reserves without specific plans to spend them, and should set council tax on the
basis of income required to support the budget for the current year. We recognise that since the
year end the Council has allocated £6.8 million of this general reserve to fund the next three years
capital programme. We will review the delivery of this programme as part of our annual audit
programme.

Service plans are developed annually, alongside the budget, with participation of staff through
service planning days. The Council has been able to demonstrate a number of outcomes arising
from the delivery of its service plans, such as an improvement in recycling rates, but it is not clear
how the activities of individual services relate to the achievement of the corporate priorines. This 1s
because the Council does not have a delivery plan for each corporate priority, that describes the hink
between the corporate strategy and individual services plans and how the priorities of the Council
will be achieved. We believe such a document will assist in the Council in identifying how individual
priorities will be delivered and will facilitate improved monitoring of the progress being made.
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The financial strategy 1s updated on an annual basts and sets out the councils financial plans for the
next five years. The Council has a good track record of meeting the annual budget and achieving 1ts
efficiency targets. The 2008 plan identifies an increasing deficit over the next five years and outlines
the steps needed to ensure that the Council is financially sound over this period. However, this
strategy does not clearly link through to the corporate objectives and demonstrate how they are
going to be delivered.

Recommendations

1. Ensure that there are specific plans in place that demonstrate how reserves are to be used in
the future, maintaining a reasonable working fund balance, and set council tax on the basis
of income required to support the budget for the current year.

2. Clearly evidence how service plans deliver the corporate priorities through the use of
corporate priority delivery plans.

3. Demonstrate a clear link between the priorities in the corporate strategy, the financial
strategy and annual budget.

KLOE 1.2 - Does the organisation have a sound understanding of its costs and
performance and achieve efficiencies in its activities?

This KLLOE focuses on whether the Council understands its costs, including whole life, transaction
and unit costs, the main factors that influence these, how they link to performance and whether it
takes account of this in its decision-making and commissioning. It also seeks to establish whether
the Council has identified the scope for making efficiencies and is on track to achieve planned
efficiencies.

Our reviewed of the Council's service plans identified that whilst benchmarking information was
being used to assess performance against others in some areas, this was not being done consistently
across all services. In 2008, the Council undertook a review of all of the services it provides to
identfy those areas where costs and performance are significantly higher, or lower, than average. As
a result of this exercise, a detailed systems review was implemented which initially focused on those
areas considered to be most important to address, benefits and planning, and then extended to
consider the housing service, which was the next priority area.

Whilst the actions arising from the system review of these three services is in the early stages of
implementation, initial results have shown improvements in both performance and financial
effictencies. It is too early to assess the sustainability of the improvements made, but the review
process has demonstrated that the Council has developed a good understanding of costs and
performance and the link between the two. Moving forwards, the Council now needs to extend this
service review process to other service areas to identfy and implement further system improvements
that should realise additional financial efficiencies and improve performance.

We found that in a number of areas, such as recycling, the Council has a developed a good
understanding of the costs and related performance. Recycling is one of the seven corporate
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priorities, a new waste contract has been entered into to introduce a recycling scheme across the
district. The contract was renegotiated to ensure that as the scheme was expanded from the trial
area, to the whole of the district more quickly than the original timetable of five years, so that the
Council would benefit from the economies of scale more quickly. Whilst the Council has been able
to demonstrate its understanding of costs across this specific areas, we found that this knowledge
does extend across all services and that there is only limited use of unit or activity based costing.

Financial and performance information are reported to members through the Executive Board and
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. There is particular focus on corporate priotities and poorly
performing services, where key performance informadon is reported to the Executive Board on a
monthly basis. However, this financial and performance information is not integrated together
within a single report and is for information only, rather than requiring specific decisions to be
made. This information should be reported together so that the inter-relationships between costs
and performance can be more clearly identified which should make it easier to establish whether
funds should be re-prioritised and diverted to other areas and expected impact that this will have on
performance.

Whilst there were only a small number of capital investment decisions made during 2008-09, these
were supported by whole life costing and were subject to a capital appraisal process which included
a nisk assessment. For future major decisions, the Council should demonstrate what alternative
options have been considered and the extent to which the wider implicatons from those decisions,
such as social or environmental impact, have been evaluated.

The Counctl identifies, as part of its financial strategy, the scope for making efficiencies. In October
2008, the Executive Board approved a three year efficiencies target of £2.2 million, and the Council
has delivered its first year target within that of £707,000 in 2008-09. The full delivery of this target
is likely to be very challenging and the Council will need to continue its robust budget and planning
approach if it is to be successful.

Recommendations

4, Develop a formal implementation plan to roll out the systems review across the Council to
ensure that services are reviewed in priority order.

5. Activity based costing, unit costs and performance should be analysed across the Council
and data should be benchmarked with other councils on a regular basis to ensure that value
for money 1s being obtained.

6. Whole life costing should be formally performed for both revenue and future capital
decisions, and should include wider social and environmental impact.
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KLOE 1.3 - Is the organisation’s financial reporting timely, reliable and does it
meet the needs of internal users, stakeholders and local peopie?

‘This KI.OE focuses on whether the Council produces relevant, timely and reliable financial
monitoring and forecasting information and uses wide-ranging performance information for in-year
decision-making and monitoring. It seeks to establish the extent to which financial reports are clear
and support strategic decision making and whether the Council's accounts meet statutory
requirements, financial reporting standards and present fairly the financial performance and position.
It also focuses on whether the Council publishes reports that provide an objective, balanced and
understandable assessment of its performance in the year.

The Council produces monthly financial management information which is reported to budget
holders. Where budget holders feel it is necessary, or where financial performance against budgets is
more volatile or high risk, then they meet with 2 member of the finance team to explain any
variances arising against specific budgets. The information provided to each budget holder 1s
tatlored to their requirements.

Monthly finance reports, which set out any variances against budget and the position of the general
fund and HRA balance are presented to the Executve Board, together with supporting expalandons
for any significant variances. Whilst we acknowledge that this information 1s both timely and
reliable, the reports are only presented for information to the Board and there is limited evidence
that they are actively used throughout the year to manage the finances of the Council. Following
feedback from members, the Council has formed a review group to consider the format of the
monthly financial information reported to the Executive Board, to ensure that the content of reports
best informs the decision making process.

Changes to the budget as a result of emerging pressures are approved by the Executive Board and
forms a revised budget. In line with good practice, the Council continues to report against the
onginal budget and the Council provides explanations for vanances against budget including the
rationale for any approved budget changes. The outturn is reported in June to Executive Board in a
detailed revenue outturn and capital ocutturn booklet.

The arrangements for monitoring the financial performance of partnerships varies depending on the
individual partnership and the contractual arrangements. For example, the performance of the
housing partnership is monitored on a monthly basis and Leisure East Devon (LED) is assessed on
a quarterly basis through service monitoring meetings and by monitoring performance and finance
statistics against the service level agreement. An annual report is also produced for the LED
partnership which includes relevant financial and non financial data.

The 2008-09 statement of accounts were prepared and submutted for audit by the 30 June 2009
deadline, and the audited accounts were signed and approved by the Audit Committee and made
available to stakeholders on the Council's website by the 30 September 2009 deadline. The accounts
presented fairly the Council's financial performance and position for 2008-09. Whilst we provided
an unqualified opinion, our audit identified a number of significant amendments that were required
to be processed in the final version of the accounts, in particular the reclassification of £3.2m from
earmarked reserves to general fund and a revision to the cash flow statement. We commended the
Council for their overall improvement in the accounts preparation process, improving the accuracy
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of the financial statements and the quality of the working papers. However, thete remains scope for
further improvement and we are working with the Council to continue this progress.

In addition to the statement of accounts, the Council has made the annual budgets and service plans
available to its stakeholders by publishing these documents on its website. Agendas and munutes for
all committees are also available online, however, not all of the agenda items are published on the
website. The Council should publish the reports for committee agenda items, not just the associated
cover sheet, to enhance transparency and the availability of information to its stakeholders. The
Council's website has increased accessibility through the 'speak this page' facility and larger text,
although there is scope to develop accessibility further with translations.

Recommendations

7. Budget monitoring reports should be revised following feedback from members and a
review group being formed to ensure the reports inform decision making. Financial
reporting should be integrated with performance information.

8. Further improve the overall quality of the statement of accounts and working papers which
support them.

9. All reports presented to committee should be published on the Council website, unless they
are formally exempt.

10.  The Council should investigate how it could further improve the accessibility of information
on its website for those people that do not have English as a first language.
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4 Governing the business

4.1 Theme summary

This theme focuses on strategic commissioning and good governance, in particular how well the
Council govemns itself and commissions services that provide value for money and deliver better
outcomes for local people.

Theme 2 - Governing the business 2
2.1 Commissioning and procurement 2
22 Use of data 2
23 Good governance 2
2.4 Internal control 1

The Council's corporate priorities have been developed in consultation with local stakeholders and 1t
is working well to deliver these prionties through commissioning and procuring the appropriate
services required. Where these are directly within the control of the Councll, it can demonstrate
how processes are resulting in improved outcomes in key services and, following the systems
reviews performed in priority areas during the year, has shown that significant improvement in
performance can be delivered. In addition, the Council procures a high proportion of goods and
services locally, which also supports its paority around thriving economy.

There are established arrangements in place for performance management, with all performance
indicators supporting corporate priorities being reported to members quarterly and the top 20,
which are based on risk and priority, being updated and reported monthly. A review of indicators in
the bottom quartile has informed the decision as to which services were selected for a detailed
systems review and the Council is developing integrated finance and performance reporting to better
inform short and medium term deciston making. Internal audit test a sample of performance
indicators each year to verify the accuracy of data reported by the Council.

The Council has robust governance arrangements in place, setting out the role and responsibilities of
individuals and committees in its corporate strategy, which is published on the website, and through
codes of conduct. Personal development plans have been introduced and are being effectively used
in member development and members provide effective challenge to the Council. There are
arrangements in place for whistle blowing and receiving complaints which have operated effecavely
during the year. A review of partnership arrangements has been started and this has highhghted the
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need for further work to clarify the Council's role across the range of partnerships that it is involved
within, the resources contributed, the governance and performance monitoring arrangements.

Arrangements for risk management and internal control have deteriorated since 2007-08. The
corporate risk register has not been formally updated or actively monitored by members, such as the
Audit and Governance Committee, during 2008-09. The Council's internal audit service has
continued to expertence resourcing issues and this has impacted on the delivery of the internal audit
plan for the year, resulting in a reduced programme of work. Whilst an anti-fraud forum as been
established, there has been limited proactive counter fraud and corruption work performed due to
the pressures face by internal audit. These issues resulted in a score of one for KLLoE 2.4 and a
qualified use of resources conclusion in respect of the arrangements for risk management and
internal control, as reported and discussed with the Council in September 2009. We recognise that
significant actions are now being taken to address these areas of concern.

KLOE 2.1 - Does the organisation commission and procure quality services and
supplies, tailored to local needs, to deliver sustainable outcomes and value for
money?

This KLOE is concerned with whether the Council has a clear vision of intended outcomes for local
people that shapes its commissioning and procurement, and whether it is based on an ongoing
analysis and understanding of needs. It also seeks to establish whether the Council understands, and
seeks to influence and develop, the supply market; and whether it reviews service competitiveness
and achieves value for money.

The corporate priorities reflected in the corporate strategy have been developed through
consultation with various partners, including local businesses and East Devon residents.
Consultation with residents 1s achieved through a number of forums, such as neighborhood
assessments and focus groups, to ensure that the Council is working towards developing services
that are relevant to, and tailored to meet, local needs. The Council has 2 procurement strategy in
place which sets out how the council aims to achieve best value through procurement and how to
ensure that the use of procurement and commissioning link to achieving the corporate priorities.

There are some examples where the Council has commissioned and procured improved services for
the local population, reflecting corporate priorities. A good example of this is the waste
management service. To deliver its recycling priority, the Council engaged in a new waste contract.
Set out within this, the Council works in partnership with the supplier so that both organisations
benefit from increased levels of recycling and to deliver better value for money in the longer term.
The contract was due to be rolled out across the district over five years, but, following recent
discussions and commentary from other stakeholders, the Council has made the positive decision to
increase the rate of roll out to ensure that its performance in recycling is significantly increased more
quickly.

There 1s scope for the Council to more clearly demonstrate that comrmussioning within services
across the Council are in line with the Council's corporate priorities. The introduction of priority
delivery plans that we have outlined under KILoE 1.1 is one way that would provide a clearer link
The Council's priorities are also required to be aligned to the Devon sustainable commuruty strategy,
in order that East Devon can demonstrate how they contribute to the priorities of people in the
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local area as well as Devon as a whole. This strategy provides a framework to facilitate coordination
with partnering organisations for the delivery of services that the Council provides itself and also the
prionities of others which the Council can positively contribute to. The Council should seek to more
clearly integrate the various strategy documents to demonstrate the 'golden thread' from the
prorities of the local community to the delivery of services.

Whulst there are examples of where the Council has demonstrated working alongside key partners in
developing priorities and working together to ensure that the services provided across East Devon
are integrated to deliver joint priorities, there have been some challenges in securing the full benefits
of this. The Council should ensure that they identify ways to work more closely with all partners to
ensure that they procure and provide the required services across the district and consider how this
can be demonstrated and communicated to others effectively.

The Counclil is part of the Devon wide procurement partnership, where they are working with other
councils to gain economies of scale in the purchase of goods and services. In addition, the Counci
is part of informal partnerships with other local councils and has undertaken a number of joint
inittatives for joint working and procurement. This is a posiave step and the impact of these
initiatives should be monitored and where possible extended by the Council during 2009-10.

The Council has demonstrated that they have started to take steps in working with local voluntary
organsations and private sector bodies, such as local businesses. A good example of a positive
outcome was how the Council wotked with a number of local businesses that were forced to close
due to the current economic environment, to ensure that the impact of redundancies was munimised
and the availability of benefits was communicated to those involved. Whilst we recognise that is a
strong example, the Council needs to ensure that the arrangements with voluntary organisations and
local businesses are developed further and embedded throughout all of its relevant activities.

The Council has identified those service areas that are not performing as strongly as they should be
and implemented service redesign actoss those departments to improve service performance and
deliver sustainable outcomes. In 2008-09, the services reviewed were planning, benefits and
housing. Following this exercise there are good early indications of improved performance, despite
an increase in the workload, and the Council needs to ensure the full benefit of this process is
realised. There are plans in place to roll out service redesign across the Council, although the
priority order in which this will occur has not yet been fully agreed. There are also wider
opportunities for the Council to gain efficiencies through the commissioning and procurement of
services, for example the use of IT, which should be incorporated into the procurement policy.

The Council has been able to demonstrate that 74% of their suppliers are within the South West and
29% of their suppliers are within the East Devon area. This supports the delivery of their corporate
ptiority to develop a thriving local economy, as well as demonstrating that the Counci has a good
understanding of the local supply market.
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Recommendations

11.  More clearly demonstrate how the Council's services contribute to the achievement of the
local strategic partnership priorities including better integration of various strategic
documents.

12.  Consider and develop further arrangements for working with local partners to provide and
procure services jointly in order to deliver the priorities set out in the Devon sustainable
community strategy.

13.  Further develop and formalise arrangements for working with the voluntary and local
business sectors across the Council.

14.  After implementation of the service re-designs in planning, benefits and housing, the
effectiveness of the systems review and new arrangements should be assessed to ensure they
are effective and that the benefits of the changes have been realised.

15.  Establish a programme, based on a sound prioritisation, of rolling the service re-design
across other service areas.

16. Consider further opportunities go gain efficiencies both in and through procurement,
including the use of IT.

KLOE 2.2 - Does the organisation produce relevant and reliable data and
information to support decision making and manage performance?

This KLOE focuses on whether the Council understands the needs of its decision makers,
produces, with partners, relevant, good quality and reliable data to support decision making and
performance monitoring. It is also concerned with whether the Council has arrangements to
monitor performance and to ensure data security and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements.

The Council uses the corporate performance management system, SPAR.net, to monitor
performance against targets. The performance information within this system is reported to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on a quarterly basis and the top 20 performance indicators, as
assessed by risk and corporate priority, are reported to the Executive Board on a monthly basis. As
part of the 2008-09 budget setting and service planning process, the Council identified areas where
performance was in the bottom quartile nationally and took action to address this by conducting a
systems review of these services, identified above.

Whilst Heads of Service are encouraged to benchmark key statstics as part of the annual service
planning, we found that the degree to which this was being done effectively varied considerably
across the Council. One area where we found that benchmarking was being used effectively was
StreetScene and there are opportunities for other service areas to consider the processes in place in
this area and how they could be applied to their own. The Council's performance on recycling was
benchmarked against other district councils, which identified that both performance and cost of
delivery were in the bottom quartile across the country and that the Council would not meet
national targets if the rate of recycling was not increased considerably. The Council used this
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performance information, along with information collated from consultation events, to determine
that waste should be a corporate priority demonstrating that performance information supported the
deciston making process.

Whilst there are a number of examples of where performance data has been used to dnve the longer
term decision making process, there is limited evidence that the performance information reported
throughout the year to Committee is used to inform short term decision making. The Counecil has
identified that performance reports are presented for information and to be noted rather than as
items for discussion and upon which decisions should be made. We recognise that the Council has
recently formed a review group to combine financial and performance reporting to better inform
members when decisions are required.

In order to ensure that performance information 1s accurately reported, internal audit test a sample
of performance indicators prepared by the Council at each year end. However, the Council does not
yet have robust assurance from partners that the processes which supply information to the Council
through partnership arrangements ensure the accuracy of data. This should be addressed to ensure
that any decisions that may be taken that 1s based on third party information are sound.

The Council has achieved compliance with the Government Code of Connection, demonstrating
that adequate data security arrangements are in place across the Council to ensure data security. No

serious incidents were reported in 2008-09 relating to the security of information, demonstratnng
that there are robust processes in place.

Data quality spot-check and housing benefits data quality results

To support our judgements for KLOE 2.2 we undertook detailed spot-checks on two of the
Council's key performance indicators and certified the accuracy of benefit and council tax claims. If
we identified any significant concerns around the quality of the underlying data which would be
likely to lead to a material misstatement, we were required to reported those findings to the Audit
Commission. We are pleased to report that no significant issues were identified.

Our summary findings are set out in the following table.

Table 3: Data quality spot-check results

Performance Indicator Significant concerns?

Local indicator (formerly BV212)

Average time to re-let council housing
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Summary of findings

| This indicator was one of the Council's 20 key performance indicators in 2008-09 and therefore
performance against target was reported to the Executive Board on a monthly basis. The actual
performance achieved, of 22 days, was significantly better than the target of 28 days and the 2007-
08 performance of 31 days, which was one of the key factors leading to this indicator as being high
risk.

Data required for the calculation of this indicator is compiled by the housing needs team. The
methods for collecting and recording the data are primarily manual processes rather than automatic,
increasing the nisk of incorrect data being used in compiling the reported performance. However,
the housing needs manager checks all of the input data.. We identified an isolated example of an
incomplete audit trail with limited evidence available to support the start of the void period for one
re-let. Our sample was extended and no further issues were identified. We also identified an error
in the calculation of one months data due to a formula etror in the spreadsheet. The data was
amended as a result of our audit and there was no impact on the quarterly or annual performance
indicator reported.

Performance Indicator Significant concerns?

National indicatory (N1 157a) No

Percentage of major planming applications
processed within 13 weeks

Summary of findings

This indicator was selected for data quality checks as there was a decline in performance in 2008-09
to 50%, both compared to the 2007-08 results (51.16%) and to the 2008-09 target performance of
60%. It was therefore identfied as a high risk and selected for spot checking.

The quality of this performance data is tightly controlled through the use of an automated system
which minimises manual entries and has in-built system checks and a clear audit trail. Accuracy
checks on the input data are performed on a random sample of planning applications by the
planning administrator and land charges manager. We did not identify any errors in our test sample
or in the calculation of the indicator.

Our audit work on performance indicators identified that while training is provided to managers on
data quality, the training provided to staff involved in measuring, compiling and recording of data,
does not cover the key issues on data quality. The Council should enhance its training on data
quality to cover all levels of staff involved in collecting and compiling data, to ensure that the
importance of data quality is embedded throughout the organisation and not just at manager level
and above.

In reaching conclusions for KLOE 2.2, we also considered the results of the data quality aspects of

our work on housing benefits. From our testing we identfied data quality errors in three claims
within our initial sample, an error rate of 4.3%. One of the errors was identified by the Council in
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2009-10 through routine data checks and will be corrected in next years benefits claim. The
remaining two data quality errors identified related to favourable changes in circumstances not being
processed on the benefits assessment due to the claimant already being in receipt of full benefit.
The Council has arrangements in place to discourage this approach because future unfavourable
changes may need to be assessed in the light of any favourable changes to provide a complete
picture. The systems team provide feedback and training if they identify such cases.

The management arrangements in place to ensure data quality in benefits were also assessed.
Training is provided to staff on data quality through subsidy training. There are review processes in
place however the level of documentation to support this review varies between teams. No
significant issues were identified over the management arrangements in place.

Recommendations

17.  More clearly demonstrate how performance information is actively used in short term
dectsion making.

18.  Ensure robust arrangements are in place to verify the accuracy of information and data
received from other organisations.

19, Provide data quality training to all staff involved in the preparadon of performance data and
indicators.

KLOE 2.3 - Does the organisation promote and demonstrate the principles and
values of good governance?

The focus for this KLOE is on assessing whether the Council has adopted, promotes and
demonstrates, the principles of good governance, maintains focus on its purpose and vision,
demonstrates a strong ethical framework and culture; and applies the principles and values of good
governance to its partnership working,

The Council's constitution is made available to stakeholders and is published on the website. To
deliver transparency in its functions and operations, all committee minutes and agendas, as well as
the full list of members' expenses is published on the website, with minutes of committees being
available five days after each meeting.

Codes of conduct are in place for both members and employees and these documents form the
ethical framework which the Council works within, in conjunction with the anti-fraud, whistle
blowing and money laundering policies. Claims by whistle blowers during the year have been
investigated and responded to and, at a higher level, the monitoring officer has received and
responded to complaints from the public, reporting instances to the Standards Board if required.

The Council is making good progress in developing its members to ensure that the receive
appropriate training to develop and discharge their roles and responsibilities effectively. The
majority of members went through a one to one session with the democratic services manager
during 2008-09 to put together individual development plans which enabled any skills gaps to be
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identified and specific training to be provided. As part of the members induction day, Councillors
attend training on a range of subjects including ethics, legal issues, risk and governance. In additon
traimng sessions are provided throughout the year which are taillored to meet the requirements of
individual committees and members needs.

These proactive actions being taken to address member development have only been recently
introduced and, as such, the longer term benefits and outcomes have yet to be realised. The Council
should ensure that the development plans of members are revisited on a regular basis so that the
tmpact of the arrangements can be and assessed and developed further, where necessary.

Internal audit have started a process of reviewing the governance arrangements of partnerships,
including identifying all of the partnerships that the Council 1s part of. There 1s currently no central
record to summarise the governance arrangements for each partnership and while the financial
investment in partnerships is recorded, the Council does not have a record of what other resources
are invested in each partnership, such as staff tme contntbuted. Risk management arrangements
which are specific to individual contracts are written into the formal contract, but risk management
arrangements that are common to all partnerships are not considered at a corporate level.

Recommendations

20. Personal development plans of members should continue to be used to ensure members
have the right skills for their role.

21.  Complete the partnership review which was started in 2008-09, including maintaining a
central record of all partnerships and core information relating to each one.

KLOE 2.4 - Does the organisation manage its risks and maintain a sound system
of internal control?

This KLOE is concerned with whether the Council has effective risk management in place that
covers partnership working; whether there is a clear strategy and effective working arrangements, to
manage the risk of fraud and corruption; and whether the Council has a sound system of internal
control including internal audit.

The Council has a corporate tisk management policy and strategy available to all staff on the intranet
and risk management training is provided to all managers as part of core management training. The
Council had appropriate risk management arrangements in place up until April 2008, with a
corporate risk register that was updated and monitored on a regular basis. The nsk register was
previously maintained by internal audit, but the Council segregated the position of risk management
and internal audit by moving responsibility for maintaining the risk register to heads of service and
budget holders, with the intention of embedding risk management within services.

These new arrangements had not been implemented by the end of the 2008-09 financial year,

resulting in a lack of corporate risk management arrangements for updating and monitoring of the
corporate risks. The Council should now ensure that the arrangements are implemented without
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delay. The corporate risk register should be updated and monitored at a corporate level, at least
quarterly, to munimise the risks that the council are exposed to and ensure that appropnate
mitigating controls are in place.

Whilst the responsibility for maintaining the risk register has been moved from internal audit to
budget holdets, the internal audit function has continued to be under pressure in 2008-09 to deliver
the internal audit plan due to ongoing resource issues in terms of staffing levels. This has put
pressure on the mnternal audit team and has meant that there have been delays in completion of the
core financial audits and the postponement of some lower nsk audits to 2009-10. This has had an
adverse impact on the effectiveness of the service provided. We recognise that the Council has been
considering the options available regarding both the short term and long term delivery of the
internal audit service and is taking action to address the current position. Moving forwards, the
Council needs to ensure that it has appropriate arrangements in order for it to gain sufficient
assurance through the delivery of a comprehensive, nsk based audit plan. An annual report it
produced by intemal audit clearly setting out governance and internal control issues that need to be
addressed.

Internal audit have begun a process of assessing and documenung all partnerships, including the
resources committed to each partnership and the risks associated with each one. However, this
work had not been completed by the end of the financial year and general partnership risks had not
been identified and monitored corporately. We acknowledge, however, that adequate risk
management arrangements are in place for key partnerships, such as Leisure East Devon and the
Local Strategic Partnership, at an operational level.

The Audit and Governance Committee provides an effective and robust challenge to the existing
internal control arrangements, seeking to improve the control environment across the council. This
was demonstrated during 2008-09 through the use of a task and finish forum for the internal audit
service. However, while the internal controls across the Council are generally effective, there are
concerns over the adequacy of the housing benefit controls. East Devon was selected by the Audit
Commission as one of the first councils to undergo a housing and council tax inspection. This
selecton process was targeted based upon a risk assessment, indicating that the benefits service at
the Council is a high risk. The results of this assessment were not finalised until the 2009-10
financial year, although we understand the Council has been able to demonstrate significant
improvement in this service.

The Council has the required policies in place to embed an anu-fraud culture, including fraud,
whistle blowing and money laundering. An ant-fraud forum was set up during 2008-09 to improve
the effectiveness of the Council's response to suspected instances of fraud but the pressures faced
by internal audit have impacted on the Council's ability to undertake proacuve counter fraud and
corruption work. This puts the council at increased risk of financial loss due to fraudulent activities
continuing for longer periods of time before detection. The Council should ensure that the
resoutces are available to carry out an element of proactive counter fraud and corruption work, to
minimise the risk of financial or reputation loss that the council is exposed to.
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Recommendations

22.  Introduce and actively maintain a corporate risk register which should be monitored by a
members, perhaps through the Audit and Governance Committee, on a quarterly basis.

23, Continue to consider the future delivery of the internal audit service to guarantee that each
annual internal audit plan 1s completed.

24.  Implement the recommendations made by the Audit Commission in the housing benefits
inspection.
25, A programme of proactive counter fraud and corruption work, based upon a robust nsk

assessment, should be agreed and undertake each year.
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5 Other resources

5.1 Theme summary

This theme focuses on the effective management of natural resources, assets and people. It is
concerned with whether the Council understands, and can quantify its use of, natural resources and
whether it is managing performance to reduce its impact on the environment. It also focuses on
whether the Council has a strategic approach to asset management based on an analysis of need to
deliver strategic priorities, service needs and intended outcomes and manages its asset base to ensute
that assets are fit for purpose and provide value for money. Finally it seeks to establish whether the
Council has a productive and skilled workforce, knows in the medium to Jonger term what staff it
will need, with what skills, and has plans to achieve this.

Theme 3 - Other resources 2

31 Use of natural resources Not assessed
32 Asset management Not assessed
33 Workforce management 2

The Council has a workforce and development strategy, which 1s supported by a range to human
resources policies and succession planning is incorporated into the service planning process. Staff
turnover remains low, although the absence rate is the highest in Devon and even after removing
the long term sick the rate is still well above the nadonal average. In the 'Best Councils' survey the
council was in the top 25 nationally, but in the council has yet to achueve level two in the equalities
standards.

KLOE 3.1 - Is the organisation making effective use of natural resources?

This KLoE has not been considered in 2008-09 as the Audit Commuission has prescribed that the
introduction of assessed themes will be phased over three years. Appendix D details those KLoEs
to be assessed in each year.

KLOE 3.2 - Does the organisation manage its assets effectively to help deliver its
strategic priorities and service needs?

This KLoE has not been considered in 2008-09 as the Audit Commission has prescribed that the

introduction of assessed themes will be phased over three years. Appendix D details those KLoEs
to be assessed 1n each year.
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KLOE 3.3 - Does the organisation plan, organise and develop its workforce
effectively to support the achievement of its strategic priorities

This KLOE considers the workforce for the Council as a whole, incorporating workforce planning,
organisational change and recruitment. It also seeks to establish whether the Council has identified
how to improve the diversity profile of it's workforce so it broadly reflects the community it serves.

The Council's workforce and development strategy is supported by a range of human resources
policies covering the issues facing council staff. Following feedback from staff, the council has
introduced new policies including voluntary working and sabbaticals. Staff are also involved 1n the
development of services with a selection of employees taking part in the staff planning days, with
others contrtbuting through focus groups. The service planning days incorporate succession
planning, taking into account staffing levels required in each service to deliver the service plans. The
outcome of the performance excellence reviews (staff appraisals) has also been incorporated into the
Council's succession planning, for example to ensure that any skills gaps identified, are taken into
consideration when planning traming needs.

Through such processes, the Council has identified the need for market forces factors to be applied
to some arcas such as IT and internal audit, to ensure that the Council continues to be a competitive
employer. Staff turnover has been reduced in 2008-09 to 5.75% from 7.52% in 2007-08, although
some key areas have continued to face recruitment and retention problems.

The Council is secking to work jointly with other Councils to recruit and retain high quality staff.
This 1s a positive step and the Council should continue to develop and investigate, at a Council wide
[evel, the opportunities available for joint workforce planning. Such arrangements could reduce
costs, attract higher calibre staff, produce a more integrated service and reduce unproductive
competition between public sector bodies for scarce resources.

The Council has faced some significant changes during 2008-09 which had the potental to have a
detrimental effect on staff morale, including the lean reviews in planning, benefits and housing and,
on a councy wide level, Local Government Reorganisation (LGR). We found that the issue of LGR
has, in particular, been managed well by the Counctl, through regular communication with staff,
including the intranet, team meetings and staff awareness seminars, which has helped to minimise
the level of uncertainty throughout the Council. The Investor in People report showed that the
morale of staff had been maintained despite the potential impact of LGR.

Implementation of the systems thinking reviews were phased over the year. After completion of the
first review, focus groups were held and feedback obtained from staff involved about how the
change was managed. Changes were made in the implementation of the reviews which followed to
address issues which had been raised.

In addition to the Investor in People review, the Council also took part in the 'Best Councils' survey.
Both exercises showed improved results across the Council demonstrating that the arrangements
being implemented by human resources are having positive outcomes. In the Best Councils survey,
East Devon achieved a top 25 for place for the sector 'Fair Deal', which assesses whether staff are
happy with their salary and benefits. High performing individuals and teams are recognised through
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letters from the Chief Executive and team lunches, for example recognition of the work done by
Street Scene after the flooding 1n 2008.

The Council did not achieve the requirements for level two of the equality standard by the end of
2008-09 because not all of the equality impact assessments had been completed. The Council
should continue to work towards completing the equality impact assessments to ensure that the
Council's performance in this area can be improved.

The Council has arrangements in place to monitor why absence levels are high and has a focused
approach to taking action to reduce sick days. Various initiatives have been put in place to reduce
the levels of absence due to sickness, including counselling services and physiotherapy sessions for
staff involved in manual labour, which have started to show results in reducing the levels of short
term and medium term absence. However, the number of days lost due to sickness, at 12.82 days, 15
well above the national average of 9.75 days and this remains an area of focus for the council,
particularly long term sickness,.

Recommendations

26.  Continue to work with other councils through joint workforce planning.

27.  Strengthen arrangements to achieve the requirements of level two in the equalities standards
and then work towards level three.

28. Continue to develop initiatives to address and reduce levels of absence, particularly long
term.
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B CAA and the new Use of Resources framework

The Old UoR Regime

Local authorities' Use of Resources (UoR) has been assessed by external auditors under the
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) regime since 2005. Until 2008, this took the form
of an assessment in each of the following 5 areas:

° financial reporting;

¢  hnancial management;

. financial standing;

L] internal control; and

®  value for money.
Authonites received an overall UoR score, and a score for each area as set out below.

Score Key

1 Below minimum requirements - performing inadequately

At only minimum requirements - performing adequately

2
3 Consistently above minimum requirements - performing well
4

Well above minimum requitements - performing strongly

This score directly influenced each organisation’s overall CPA score and had a significant impact on
external perception and reputation.

The move to Comprehensive Area Assessment
The CPA regime provided an effective roadmap and stimulus for improvement, which helped many
authorities to move in the right direction, focusing on externally validated strengths and weaknesses.

This was reflected by a national picture of gradually improving scores and assessment results from
2005-8, and improving services to the public.
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However, in order to build on the success of CPA, the Audit Commission recognised the need to:
o  ask "how well are people served by their local public services" rather than "how well are
people served by their Councils”;
e  focus on outcomes for an area, not just on individual orgamisatons;
] consider local priorities rather than apply a "one-size fits all" approach;

e  consider whether performance is likely to improve in the future, rather than how it has
improved in the past; and

e  place less importance on compliance and rules to reflect local differences.

In late 2007 the Audit Commussion began to consult on a new framework for comprehensive area
assessment (CAA), of which an updated UoR assessment would be a key component. The CAA
framework that emetged focuses on areas rather than the organisations within them, and holds local
partners jointly to account for their impact on the things that matter to the area as a whole. The
CAA asks three key questions.

¢  How well do local prorities express community needs and aspirations?
] How well are the outcomes and improvements needed being delivered?

e What are the prospects for future improvement?

The CAA does not give an overall score, as was the case for CPA. However, there will be green
flags given for innovative or exceptional performance and red flags given to indicate concerns about
outcomes and performance.

CAA - key changes

CPA CAA

Local government focus All sectors and partners

Institution based Area based

One size fits all Focus on local prionties

Performance Outcomes and perceptions

Collaboration between regulators Joint assessment

Cyclical inspection Continuous assessment, proportionate inspection
Focus on past performance Focus on future improvement

Sourcer- Aundit Commission
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Use of Resources under CAA

Alongside the area assessment, CAA will include organisational assessments for key public sector
organisations including councils, primary care trusts (PCTs), police forces and fire authorties. Each
organisational assessment consists of two components; an assessment of how effectvely the
organisation is addressing its own priorities, called "managing performance” for councils, and an
updated UoR assessment will be applied similarly across the different types of organisation.

The new UoR framework under CAA applies from 2008-09. The diagram below shows the overall
approach to the revised UoR framework. There are three themes replacing the five areas included in

the old framework, and a number of key lines of enquiry (KLOEs) within each theme.

Use of Resources under CAA (source: the Audit Commission)

N\,

‘\%”@ing reso““’"’i /

\_—_/

The individual KLOEs for each theme are detailed in the main body of this document. Scoring
criteria are set out in appendix C.
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C Scoting criteria and rules

The table below summarises the criteria used to reach scored judgements for each KL.OE.

Level 2

Level 3

Level 4

Performs adequately

Arrangements consistent with
established professional
practice and guidance, meet
statutory requirements and
operate effectively.

Performs well

Implemented effective
arrangements that are:

» forward looking and proactive
in identifying and developing
opportunities for improvement;
and

» include more sophisticated
measuring and assessment
techniques.

Performs excellently

Demonstrating innovation
or best practice.

Arrangements sufficient to
address the KLOE.

Outputs and outcomes
demonstrate arrangements which
are effective and have the intended
impact, and show evidence of
effective partnership working.

Demonstrating strong
outcomes for the
community including
through partnership
working.

Arrangements achieve
minimum acceptable levels
of performance.

Evidence of performing
consistently above minimum
acceptable levels and achieving
VEM.

Evidence of performing
well above minimum
acceptable levels and
achieving excellent VFM.

Theme scores are derived from a numerical average of the KLOE scores within that theme. In
some cases such as theme 2 or theme 3 when only 2 out of 3 KLOEs are assessed, the average of
KLOE scores could result in a number ending in .5. In such cases the following rules apply in 2008-

09

° For theme 2, if the average KLOE score ends in 0.5, then the theme score will be rounded
up or down to the score for KLOE 2.2. Examples - KLOE scores of 3,2,2,2 = theme score
of 2. KLOE scores of 3,2,3,2 = theme score of 2. KLOE scores of 2,3,3,2 = theme score of

3.

) For theme 3, if the average KLOE score ends in 0.5, then the theme score will be rounded
up or down to the score for KLOE 3.1. Examples - KLOE scores of 3,2 = theme score of 3.
KLOE scores of 2,3 = theme score of 2.
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The Audit Commission document at the link below details the overall approach to UoR framework
and full details of scoring methodology.

http:/ /www.audit-

commission.gov.uk/SiteCollecionDocuments/Downloads /uorframework2008updatefeb09.pd f

In additdon the Commission published auditor guidance for the UoR framework. This is available at
the link below. This provides details of the specific KLOE’s and expected indicators for levels of

performance.
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D KLOE: specified for assessment in 2008-09 and 2009-10

Some KLOEs are assessed on a rotating basis. The table below summarises the KILLOEs that were
assessed and formed the basis for the VEM conclusion in 2008-09.

Single tier or e NHS PCTs

county council

Theme 1 - Managing finances

1.1 Financial planning Y Y Y
1.2 Understanding costs Y 4 Y
13 Financial reporting Y ¥ Y
Commussioning and procurement Y Y wWCC
22 Use of data Y Y Y
23 Good governance Y Y _ Y
24 Internal control Y Y Y
[Tt 3= Ot iesonrees B o 0 s S SRS
31 Environmental management Y N N
32 Asset management Y N Y+
3.3 Workforce management N Y Y

*only assessed at PCTs with a significant asset base.
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For the 2009-10 assessment, the following KLOE:s will be assessed and will form the basis for the
VM conclusion. Scores achieved in 2008-09 will continue to apply for 2009-10 for those KLOEs
not being re-assessed.

Single tier or

Districts NHS PCTs

county council
Theme 1- Managing finances

1.1 Financial planning Y Y iy

1.2 Understanding costs Y Y l Y _J

1.3 Financial reporting Y 5 o Y

Theme 2 - Governing the business

21 Commissioning and procurement Y Y WCC

22 Use of data Y Y Y

23 Good governance Y Y Y

24 Internal control Y Y Y o
| Thome 3- Otthes resources 1\ i i e A RS

3.1 Environmental management N Y Y

3.2 Asset management Y N N

33 Workforce management Y N Y

*only assessed at PCTs with a significant asset base.

Full details of the scoring methodology are provided at the Audit Commission's website at the
address belo.

http: / /www audit-
co isston.gov.uk/SiteCollecionDocumenits / Downlo uorframework2008updatefeb09.pdf
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E Identifying outcomes, outputs and achievements

Identifying outputs, outcomes and achievements

In order to score level 3 or above in the new UoR assessment framework, organisations were
required to show that processes are effective and having the intended impact. This is an important
shift in emphasis from the previous framework, within which orgamsations could achieve top scores
by demonstrating excellent processes. The table below gives gencralised examples of the types of
outcome that have led to higher scores.

Table 4: Illustrative examples of outcomes, outputs and achievements by KLOE

NOTE - these examples are for illustration only and do not comprehensively cover each KLOE.

Refer to section 2 for KLLOE headings.

Qutcome

Investment in priorities leads
to improved petformance

Savings targets met,

g5 targ

performance reward grant
achieved

Achievement

Positive external assessment

mitigated, frauds recovered

nisk registers

1.2 | Improved relationship Service reviews completed Development of effecuve
between costs and identifying opportunities corporate efficiency
performance programme

1.3 | Healthy financial position Improved financial skills Early close of accounts, clean

audit

2.1 { Improved service Completed commissioning / | Innovative approach to joint
performance at lower cost procurement exercises commissioning

External recogmuon for
procurement

2.2 | Better-informed decisions Improved internal Finding and fixing problems
and robust data to performance reporting with own or partner data
stakeholders

2.3 | Flexibility and responsiveness| All members trained in ethical Achieving a more balanced
whilst maintaining focus behaviour political process

2.4 | Risks identified and Development and review of | Development of effective

partnership nisk framework
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Outcome ' Achicvement
3.1 | Reducing emissions and Training of environmental Enrolment in carbon
water consumption champions reduction programme
3.2 | Improving condition of assets| Income from disposal of Better office accommodation

unwanted assets

3.3 | Meetng skills gaps, Reducing turnover and Investors in people
improving staff satisfaction | sickness absence accreditation

There are some common sense principles that should be taken into account when seeking to identfy
outcomes:

° organisations should not have to identify new outcomes for the purposes of UoR
assessment. These should be identfied and captured through existing management acuvity;
organisations should understand how their processes help them to achieve their priorites;

*  outcomes and outputs should be measurable whete possible, but if this is not the case then a
qualitative description of the improvement is still useful;

®  there may not be a one-to-one relationship between processes and outcomes. There may be
a small number of outcomes that arise as the net effect of a processes across a KLOE area;
and

) if you are having difficulty then discuss the area with your UoR auditor.

Our approach to ensuring consistency

In line with the Audit Commission's move to Comprehensive Area Assessment, the new use of
resources framework has been designed to provide mote flexibility to recognise local issues,
priorities and achievemnents. This has given auditors more freedom to establish the individual story
of each organisation, rather than applying a rigid best practice template. To support this, both the
Audit Commuission and Grant Thornton UK LLP have put in place new arrangements for ensuring
that judgements and scores are reached in a fair and consistent way.

The Audit Commission has:

* provided extensive guidance and training;

e introduced an area-based challenge process bringing together auditors within each region to
discuss and challenge indicative scores;

®  increased the visibility of comparative scores and commentary for auditors; and
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®  undertaken a detailed final quality assurance process including statistical analysis across
suppliers, regions and types of organisation.

Grant Thornton has:

. provided internal training and guidance;
®  developed a network of regional leads to oversee the audit process nationally;

*  undertaken a number of internal consistency and challenge sessions, comparing our clients to
each other and with their regional neighbours; and

e  undertaken detailed review and quality control of scores and conclusions.
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Agenda Item 9

Audit and Governance Committee

3 December 2009 @ .

SD District Council

Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)

Summary

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) will be applicable for the 2010/2011
Statement of Accounts. 2009/2010 figures will need to be restated to comply with IFRS, making
it necessary to collect data from 1 April 2009.

In order to successfully convert to IFRS support will be required from several areas of the
Council and will have a significant impact on the Finance team. This report highlights the key
issues, the risks involved and the possible resource implications.

Recommendation

The Committee are asked to note the requirement to implementation IFRS and consider the
issues involved.

a) Reasons for Recommendation

The Councils accounts are currently prepared using UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (UK GAAP); from 2010/11 the Accounts will be prepared under International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). This change does have an impact on the Council's staff
resources and the changed accounts could have financial implications. Members need to
aware of these changes and ensure themselves the Council will comply with the accounting
standards within the statutory deadline.

b) Alternative Options

The Council has no alternative but to implement IFRS, there are alternatives in terms of
resourcing the implementation.

c¢) Risk Considerations

Risks of not implementing IFRS accurately and on time could mean a qualified audit
opinion in 2010/2011. This would also have a negative impact on our Use of Resources
assessment.

d) Policy and Budgetary Considerations
These are outlined in the report.

e} Date for Review of Decision

Progress reports will be made to the Audit and Governance Committee at key times of
implementation.
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1. Background

1.1 The purpose of this report is to brief Members on the impact of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) to the Council. This report includes details of the timetable
for implementation, the accounting implications as well as the likely staffing implications.

1.2 The Statement of Accounts for local authorities are currently prepared under UK
accounting standards (UK GAAP). From 2010/2011, these will need to be prepared
under IFRS. This change has been imposed on the whole of the public sector by the
Government following an announcement in the March 2007 budget.

1.3 Listed companies in the private sector implemented IFRS in 2005. Central government
and the NHS will be reporting under IFRS from 2009/2010, a year earlier than local
authorities.

2. Timetable of implementation.

2.1 The first set of IFRS accounts will be for the 2010/2011 financial year. These will need to
be approved by 30 June 2011. However, as the comparative figures for the previous
year will need to be restated in these accounts, the earliest date that we need to gather
IFRS information is 1 April 2009 (see Figure 1).

IFRS
. Transitien
i Balalmn Shohei X
01/04/09 * 31/03/1 0 31/03/11
. AL T S e I T el PR ql
JDJ 2011
< Prepare Code > < Preparalion > < Implementation > um

Comparatives First IFRS accounts

2.2 Appendix 1 contains an outline project timetable that will ensure that the key deadlines
are met (key milestones are highlighted).

3. An analysis of the Key Changes

3.1 Below are the main key changes which will affect our accounts and will require time to
analysis.

» Leases

o All existing leases (where the Council is both lessee and lessor) need to be
reviewed as some leases could now be treated differently in the accounts. For
accounting purposes there are 2 types of leases; finance leases and operating
leases. Operating leases are 100% revenue expenditure and finance leases
have payments split between capital expenditure and interest payments. The
rules of determining the type of lease have been revised and most importantly
more emphasis is placed on judgement rather than a quantitive test. Individual
components within lease arrangements may need to be split out separately with
land elements treated as an operational lease and a building as a finance lease.
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IFRS introduces the concept of 'lease type arrangements’. Implementation could
require the Council to recognise a lease of assets held by contractors but used
only for the Council's contracts. This could potentially have an impact for the
Council because it will require a review of all our major suppliers and
partnerships. For example, if our contract with Sita gives the Council ‘control’ of
the refuse vehicles, then these vehicles should be taken onto our balance sheet.

Officers have to re-examine all of the Council existing leases and determine how
to account for these leases under IFRS accounting. If there is a change in how
some leases will be treated, which is likely, then calculations will need to take
place going back to the date of the original inception of lease. Currently the
Council does not have any finance leases recorded; it is likely under IFRS that
more leases will be deemed as finance leases. If we find that we do have
finance leases then technically this will affect the Council’'s debt free status.

» Other Fixed Asset Issues

o

Material components of assets should be accounted for separately (e.g. the
Knowle office building could be accounted for separately for material parts and
fixtures such as the roof, walls, lifts, boilers etc.). This could lead to additional
work for the Valuers and more assets being held in the asset register.

There are different accounting rules for revaluations and impairments.
Impairments can be a downward valuation due to a fall in market prices, or a loss
in value due to an event which affects its value, such as a fire or obsolescence.

Certain assets will require a different valuation method than used currently. Two
valuations may therefore be needed for 2009/2010: one for the 2009/2010
accounts under UK GAAP; and one for the restated valuation in the 2010/2011
accounts under IFRS. In order to calculate the entries for each asset, valuations
will need to be completed in line with the new accounting standards and
accordingly the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) has issued
guidance on how to achieve this, There could however be a cost to carrying out
this work if external valuers are required to assist the process,; our property
services team will have to make an assessment of this once the full implications
of revaluations are known.

These changes will have an impact on councils asset registers in terms of
changes to individual assets and the information required to be held. We hold
our assets on IPF (Institute of Public Finance) asset register software which will
comply with the new requirements. We are not expecting significant additional
costs for the new modules required, but we are waiting confirmation of this.

» Employee Benefits

0

"

o

All benefits payable during employment will need to be accounted for in the
period in which the benefit has been earned by the employee. All untaken
holidays and flexitime at the end of the financial year will need to be accrued for.
Additional information will therefore need to be gathered for the accounts, the
majority of this information can be taken from our time recording system but not
all details for all staff is held. This has meant and will continue to mean that
annually we will have to carry out sample work to gain this information.

» Group Accounts

Under IFRS a local authority only needs the power to influence another entity
(rather than to actually exercise it) for it to be treated as part of the group. A full
review of all related parties will need to be carried out.
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7 Presentation

o There are significant changes to the main statements. The new formats will need
to be explained to Members at an early stage in preparation for the Committee to
be able to undertake its role in the scrutiny of the Accounts.

o When listed private sector companies implemented IFRS in 2005, they saw an
increase of 50% to 60% in the size of their financial statements. IFRS requires
more disclosure notes than is currently the case; however CIPFA has reviewed
the disclosure notes and have seeked to remove some disclosures where it is not
absolutely necessary.

4. Impact on Budgets and Council Tax

4.1 Whilst some of the changes will give rise to a change in the net expenditure reported
each year, CIPFA have stated any impact on Council Tax would be mitigated through
statutory accounting adjustments. Details of mitigation are required from the DCLG
(Department of Communities Local Government).

5. Implications of implementation.

5.1 The changes brought about by IFRS will require input from across the Council. The
following is an indication of the services that will need to provide input into the project:

» Lleases - All services that are involved in procurement, Property Services.
» Other Fixed Asset Issues — Property Services, Finance

» Employee Benefits - Individual staff (sample basis), Finance

» Group Accounts — Some services, Finance

> Presentation and Technical issues — Finance

5.2 There are a number of specialists that are offering assistance with the conversion to
IFRS. However, the intention at this stage is to use existing staff to manage the
transition. A project team has been formed and are currently working on the issues with
assistance from other officers as required. The project team consists of. Simon Davey
(Project Lead — Head of Finance), Laurelie Gifford {Senior Accountant), Claire Read
(Assistant Accountant), Donna Best (Principle Estates Surveyor) and Rob Chalklin
(Estates Surveyor).

5.3 We are working with Devon County Council, who have dedicated staff working on the
implementation, and other Devon districts as a group to implement the changes. This
Jjoint working involves sharing knowledge and experience and running joint project
meetings.

5.4 An Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed at this stage since the full
impact of IFRS has not been assessed.

L.egal Implications
There are no issues requiring legal comment

Financial Implications
These are detailed in the report. These comments relate to the presentation of the final accounts
and it is envisaged will

Background Papers
Finance papers and CIPFA publications

Simon Davey Audit and Governance
Head of Finance 3 December 2009
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Appendix 1

Key stages/mile stones to implementation.

Step Completion Dates
al Carry out high level assessment - what are the | March 2009
implications/understand changes to accounting policies. Continuing process
as more information
is published
2 Sign up to County wide project team for implementation of IFRS March 2009
3 Determine areas where information needed to restate 1 April 2008 | March 2009
balance Sheet. Particularly consider information which is time
bound and needing recording at particular stages.
4 Set up formal EDDC project team with key personal October 2009
5 Key staff trained on IFRS transition Ongoing
6 ldentify systems and procedural changes required (Chart of | December 2009
accounts/asset register etc)
7 Consider implications of IFRS in compiling 2010/11 and later | October 2009 to
budgets on IFRS January 2010
8 Identify all leases and carry out assessment of Finance or | October 2009 to
Operating lease. June 2010
9 Adopt EDDC draft accounting policies under IFRS February 2010
10 Determine and ensure fixed asset are correctly classified for [FRS | February 2010
11 Revaluations of assets under IFRS June 2010
12 Restate 2009/10 accounts for 2010/11 IFRS comparisons June 2010 to
December 2010
13 Produce 2010/11 accounts on IFRS basis April 2011 to
June 2011

In addition to the above, the processes and timetable for producing the 2009/10 Accounts
under UK GAAP will still need to be undertaken and this has been acknowledged in

formulating the above timetable to try and accommdate this work as well.

Finance is a

small team and the Financial Services Manager post is being held vacant, it maybe
necessary to employee an agency resource at stages to backfill at particular pressure
points in the workload.
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Agenda Item 10

Audit & Governance Committee

3 December 2009

sc/Tc

Health & Safety responsibilities of Elected Members

Summary

Elected Members have a responsibility for ensuring the Council's health and safety arrangements
are adequate. They also need to consider health and safety implications when making decisions
on behalf of the Council or their electorate.

Recommendation

To make Members aware of their responsibilities and to make a recommendation to full council
that the attached booklet be distributed to Members and that the training offered to Members be
encouraged.

a) Reasons for Recommendation
To help Members understand their responsibilities for health and safety.

b) Alternative Options
None.

c) Risk Considerations
The Council has a Duty of Care towards its staff and to the wider community; the Council's
corporate risk register contains various risks relating to this.

The Strategic (Corporate) Risks are:

004-RK-0077 — Death, liiness or injury due to a Council act or omission
004-RK-0078 - Failure to exercise our legal duty

004-RK-0079 - Prosecution of Council for public safety contraventions

The Operational (Service) Risks are:
EH-RK-0042 - Failure to ensure adequate food safety and health & safety enforcement
EH-RK-0038 — Failure to ensure health and safety is properly managed

d) Policy and Budgetary Considerations
There are no budgetary implications.

e) Date for Review of Decision
N/a

1.0 Introduction

Local authorities are major employers and must exercise their Duty of Care for the health and
safety of their employees. They are also major purchasers of goods and services from other
organizations and use contractors on a regular basis to provide essential works and services. As a
major purchaser, the Council has an opportunity to influence the wider business community and to
insist on high standards of health and safety.
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Local authorities are partners with the health and Safety Executive as regulators of workplaces,
Enforcement of the districts health and safety is carried out by the Council's Environmental Health
Service,

Members need to understand their responsibilities too, and that they have influence over budget
and policies decisions; and have a responsibility to consider the health and safety implications
when making decisions.

Members will be given a presentation today, together with a booklet produced by the Institute of
Occupational Safety and Health, entitted “Think about Health and Safety”, which outlines the

responsibilities of elected members. Our insurers, AlG, have been asked to provide a half-day
course "Health and Safety briefing for Elected Members" which will take place in due course.

Legal Implications
No direct legal implications.

Financial Implications
No direct financial implications.

Consultation on Reports to the Executive

Background Papers
Think about Health & Safety — IOSH booklet

Stephen Cross
Health & Safety Manager
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Agenda Item 11

Audit & Governance Committee

3~ December 2009 @ .

IC

Response to ICT Action Plan - ICT Services

Summary

An audit was conducted into the Council's ICT arrangements during 2008/09 culminating in a
report (Executive Summary) and action plan being presented to the Committee in January 2009.
Following on from this, Internal Audit's Annual Report presented to the Committee in June 2009
highlighted the weaknesses found in this area and the fact that there was currently no ICT audit
expertise to conduct the 'follow up’ to this review to ensure that the recommendations made and
agreed were being implemented. At that meeting the Chief Executive confirmed that it was
appropriate to seek an interim report from the Head of ICT on the progress being made in
implementing recommendations. It was suggested that the Portfolio Holder — Communications be
invited to a future Audit & Governance Committee meeting where the concerns raised in the audit
could be discussed together with an update on the remedial action being taken by the Service.
Members recognised that it was the role of the Portfolio Holder to keep a watching brief on ICT
systems and procedures.

Internal Audit have received a response from the Head of ICT (this is attached to this Committee
Report).

Internal Audit currently do not have the expertise required to conduct a follow up to this technical
audit, however there are some areas that we are able to comment and these are stated in the
report. We note that in some cases the dates committed to by the Head of ICT in the original
Action Plan have slipped.

Recommendation

That the Audit & Governance Committee note the response received from the Head of ICT and
note the further comments of Internal Audit.

a) Reasons for Recommendation
To help Members of the Audit & Governance Committee monitor the action being taken by
the Head of ICT to mitigate the failings and risks found in his service area.

b) Alternative Options
None.

c) Risk Considerations
The Council's Corporate Governance framework relies on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Council’s information systems, councilors, strategic management team and heads of
service make far-reaching decisions based on the information extracted from the Council’s
computer systems, without robust and rigorous controls in place, the Council cannot place
reliance on the integrity of its operating data, and more significantly the Council's corporate
governance arrangements are seriously compromised

d) Policy and Budgetary Considerations
There are no budgetary implications.
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e) Date for Review of Decision
N/a

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The ICT audit took place during the period September to November 2008 and was
conducted by means of discussion with relevant staff, review of documentation and system
interrogation. The audit focused on management controls, access controls, operational controls
and system development controls.

Management Controls

1.2 The review highlighted concerns over the accuracy and quality of reporting to the
Programme Board. In particular, the Novell-Microsoft migration had a cost estimate of £47,000
(business case), an agreed Budget of £50,000 but the total cost at the date of the audit was
£157,509 (October 2008). We were of the opinion that this cost would rise further.

1.3 We recommended in the main report that membership of the Programme Board be
extended to enable a more ‘challenging’ response; for instance to extend an invitation to the
Portfolio Holder for ICT.

14 We were also concerned with the disregard shown to the council's policies and procedures
where ICT contract staff were hired without adherence to HR procedures and the use of such staff
is not recorded in the council's HR system (Trent).

1.5  Furthermore, we found breaches to the Council's Financial Regulations and Contract
Standing Orders associated with the contract for Microsoft Migration / Office 2007 training.

1.6 We were of the opinion that the structure of ICT does not focus on Service Delivery and
Security. Without these essential elements, the Council cannot be assured that the problems
relating to this important area (which are highlighted in the main report) will receive adequate
attention.

1.7 We were also of the opinion that there is a pressing need for a benchmarking exercise to
be conducted in order that the Council can be assured that ICT is delivering Value for Money.

Access Controls

1.8  The review revealed significant weaknesses in the security of the Windows XP operating
system and the Council's Novel network. Management reacted positively to some of our findings
in this area. It was also recognised that the security review phase of the Novell-Microsoft project
has not yet been conducted and that the need to comply with the Code Of Conformance for the
GovConnect project will address these areas.

Operational Controls

1.9 As mentioned above, there was a lack of focus on Service Delivery and significant failings
were found in the Help Desk processes. We reported also that the Council’s Disaster Contingency
Plan for ICT is not viable.

Systems Development

1.10  We found that many documents which are regarded as key milestones of the Prince 2
system development methodology do not appear to have been produced both for live and closed
projects.
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2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Response to Head of Service Revised Action Plan

41.11/411.2/41.1.3
Noted.

4.1.2 Legal Compliance “Synergykey”
Noted, the Head of ICT to report back to Internal Audit as appropriate.

41.3/1414141.5
Noted.

4,1.7 Microsoft Migration / Office 2007

Contract Standing Orders set out various options for Heads of Service to follow, a ‘preferred
list of suppliers’ is one way, however an 'Expression of Interest advertisement' would have
been equally acceptable, and this is stated as a viable way forward in the Contract Standing
Orders. The other option would have been to seek an ‘Exemption to Standing Orders’.

4.2.1 through 4.2.8
Noted.

4.3.1.
Noted.

4.3.2 Disaster Recovery

Members can be assured that the Council's disaster recovery arrangements are viable, the
point we were referring to related to the fact that it had been necessary to recover some
data from the back up tape store at the Knowle in order to carry out the previous test. In
our opinion it is possible that in the event of a disaster, the back up tape store may well be
cordoned off by the emergency services and would not be accessible. We are also
concerned that the date has slipped since our initial review, the origina! implementation
date for this action was March 2009.

4.3.3 through 4.3.6
Noted.

4.4.1
Noted.

Legal Implications
No observations are needed.

Financial Implications
No direct financial implications.

Consultation on Reports to the Executive

Background Papers

ICT Audit Report — November / December 2008
ICT Audit Action Plan

Tanith Cox
Audit & Governance Manager
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Agenda item 12

Audit and Governance Committee

3rd December 2009

Te

Internal Audit activity report for the period 1st October 2009 to 315t December
2009, to include:

* Audit Plan Monitoring to 315t December 2009
= Audit Report Executive Summaries

The attached Activity Report gives brief details on the staffing situation within the Council's Audit
and Governance section and hightights Internal Audit activity for the third quarter, indicating where
audits are progressing well and identifies those that have slipped against the internal audit plan.
Members will note the progress made and also be informed of the audits that remain outstanding.

Recommendations

Members are asked to note and keep under review the:

Audit Plan Monitoring Document

Audit Performance Indicators

Internal Audit Reports - Executive Summaries

The requirement for a follow-up report on Car Parks pending enquiries by Internal Audit)

a) Reasons for Recommendation
To ensure that progress is made on the plans of internal Audit in line with Member expectations.

b) Alternative Options
None

c¢) Risk Considerations

Local authorities are required to “make arrangements for the proper administration of their
financial affairs” and/or “maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its
accounting records and of its system of internal control in accordance with proper internal
audit practices”.

The Operational (Service) Risks are:

AUD-RK-0027 — The provision of an efficient and effective audit and governance service
AUD-RK-0081 - Fraud, Theft and/or irregutarity of financial resources

AUD-RK-0082 - Fraud, Theft and/or irregularity of physical assets

d) Policy and Budgetary Considerations
None

e) Date for Review of Decision
Nfa

98



Main Body of the Report

Audit Staffing

The Service has managed to retain an external contractor (audit consuitant) who is assisting in the
training and supervision of the Trainee Auditor. The part-time Principal Auditor is on maternity leave
and no date has yet been given for her return. A tendering exercise to complete part of the internal
audit work plans has been compieted, the results of which appear in a separate report attached to
this Agenda.

Audit Activity
¢ Appendix 1 — Audit Plan Monitoring Document

This schedule provides a summary of activity for the period and assists Members in following the
progress of audits.

Interpretation:

First Quarter — April to June 2009
The first quarter consists of a variety of shorter and mid-length audits the largest of which was the
National Indicator work which covers a specialist area and this is reporied separately in this meeting.

All work has been completed for this quarter.

Second Quarter — July to September 2009
The second quarter consists of a mix of more complex audits, such as Procurement and Contract
Audit. One audit remains outstanding (although at draft report stage).

Third Quarter — October to December 2009

The third quarter consists of a mix of larger audits of a financial and regulatory nature, such as
Revenues and Income and Cashiers. The team is making progress on completing this quarters’
work. Over half this quarters’ audits have been started and are at differing stages of completion.

Unplanned and Ad-hoc Audit Work
There has been no unplanned or ad-hoc work other than the usual provision of advice to Heads of
Service, Managers or staff.

Audit Performance Indicators

+ Percentage of planned audits commenced (three quarters) — 85%
e Percentage of planned audits completed (three quarters) — 60%
« Feedback responses at least ‘satisfactory’

Audits completed | Feedback Feedback Reports | Feedback Reports
and Feedback Reports Marked Marked
requested Returned ‘Satisfactory’ ‘Unsatisfactory’
First Quarter

5 5 5 0

Second Quarter

7 4 4 0

Third Quarter

0

Fourth Quarter

0
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* Recommendations ‘accepted’ versus ‘recommendations made’

Total Total

Recommendations 55 Recommendations 55
made in 1% Quarter accepted in 1°' Quarter
Total Total

Recommendations 35 Recommendations 35
made in 2™ Quarter accepted in 2™ Quarter
Total Total

Recommendations N/A Recommendations N/A
made in 3" Quarter accepted in 3" Quarter

e Percentage of audits completed within the planned time
12 audits completed ~ 1 over-ran one day (92%)

Internal Audit Report Executive Summaries — for discussion

* Housing Management
¢ Housing Needs

e Car Parks

» Safeguarding Children

Conclusion

The role of Internal Audit continues to change and expand according to demand; changing

legislation and the requirements of our external review agencies.

This report covers the period 1%

October 2009 to 31*' December 2009. A report covering the period 1* January 2010 to 31% March
2010 wilt be presented at the next meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee scheduled for

18" March 2010.
Legal Implications

No legal observations

Financial Implications
No financial observations

Consultation on Reports to the Executive

MNone

Background Papers

0 Specified appendices

Tanith Cox - 2687
Internal Audit and Governance
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East Devon District Council — Internal Audit and Governance

Housing Management — EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction
An audit of the Council's Housing Contracts was undertaken in 2009 together with a
review of the Housing Management system used to control Housing Contracts.

Contract Extensions

The contracts with the 2 companies responsible for providing the Housing
Maintenance service to Council properties was extended on the 1** April 2006 but no
evidence is available within Housing Management records to verify that the extension
had been subject to a properly completed and certified Exemption to Standing
Orders.

Contractor Invoices

We reviewed the invoices relating to the Central Heating Upgrade 2009 and found
that the Practical Completion Invoice included a claim for a property where no work
had been done and the variation orders amount was understated. On this occasion
there was no detriment to the Council however inadequate checking of invoice
accuracy introduces the risk of the Council making inappropriate payments.

Use of Constructionline
Two different Constructionline lists were provided to Housing Management for two
similar building works schemes, one in January 2009 and the other in March 2009.

The scheme for which the Constructionline list was provided in January did not
progress and the list was used to select a contractor to perform the work scheduled
for March. The Constructionline list provided in March was not used.

This introduces the risk of the Council employing a contractor who has been removed
from the Constructionline list.

On another occasion, a Constructionline list was provided to Housing Management
for the Exterior Redecoration 2009 programme.

13 contractors were invited to submit tender bids for 17 contracts. 7 of these
contractors, although registered with Constructionline, were not included on the
Constructionline list provided by Internal Audit introducing the risk of the Council
being accused of inviting favoured contractors to submit tender bids for the work.

Obtaining Quotes

A sample of 12 non-responsive maintenance jobs were reviewed to ascertain
whether Contract Standing Orders were adhered to prior to the work being allocated.
Two of these were for values of over £3,000 and the other ten were for values of
under £3,000. Contract Standing Orders requires that three written quotations are
obtained for work over £3,000 value and one written quote is received for work under
£3,000 value.

Housing Management
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East Devon District Council — Intenal Audit and Governance

Five of the jobs reviewed were completed as part of a contractual agreement,
evidence of a written quotation was provided for one of the other jobs but written
quotations were not available for the other six jobs.

Contract Standing Orders have been breached in these six instances and the Council
would be unable to defend itself if challenged by an external body as to why or how
these contractors had been selected.

Conclusion

In our opinion and after careful consideration Internal Audit can offer a neutral
opinion and can confirm that the level of assurance that can be given is LA - Limited
Assurance.

Housing Management
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East Devon District Council — Intemal Audit and Governance

AUDIT OF HOUSING NEEDS - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

The Housing Needs audit took place during the period August to September 2009 and was
conducted by means of discussion with relevant staff, review of documentation and the Anite
Housing Management system. The audit focussed on management and operational controls
to provide assurance that the work processes and systems operating within Housing Needs
are efficient and effective.

We found that one applicant living in a Council property, made an application using the form
intended for the use of applicants not currently housed by the Council (or partner Registered
Social Landlord) instead of a Transfer Waiting List form. Another applicant, who had
previously been, but who was no longer on the Housing Register, submitted a Change of
Circumstances form instead of a Housing Application Form.

Banding criteria varies dependant on an applicant's current circumstances and the
acceptance of the wrong form could result in an inappropriate allocation being made.

There were two instances where hard copy documentation could not be found. This
introduces the risk of ineligible applicants being included on the Housing Register or eligible
applicants being inappropriately banded.

A random sample of 20 applications for inclusion on the Housing Register were reviewed to
ascertain whether the “banding” group that the applicant had been allocated was
reasonable. We found an instance where the applicant had quoted a police incident number
but there was no evidence on file to support the incident being authentic. It was considered
by Internal Audit that the gold banding allocation was generous.

We reviewed a random sample of 15 allocations made during the previous 12 months and
found that two Void Monitoring Sheets had not been signed by the officer making the
allocation, and one sheet did not include the reason for the allocation being made to the
chosen applicant. This could mean the Council is unable to defend itself if criticised for the
decision, or would not be able to offer a satisfactory explanation if challenged on the validity
of the allocations.

Conclusion

This review has highlighted a few failings in some areas, but we are confident that the
Housing Needs Manager will work with his team to ensure these issues are dealt with. In
our opinion, after careful consideration we are able to provide a 'positive opinion’ which is
translated into 'adequate’ assurance.

Tanith Cox
Internal Audit & Governance
September 2009

Housing Needs
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East Devon District Council — Internal Audit and Governance

CAR PARKS
- EXECUTIVE SUMMARY -
Introduction
An internal audit review was undertaken in 2009 of the council operated car parks
within East Devon

Timesheets for Civil Enforcement Officers (CEQ)
A review of a sample of 15 timesheets revealed that in one case there was an

incomplete audit trail with a risk that the CEO ended his shift before the time stated on
this timesheet.

Machine Revenue
Revenue obtained from the various auto slot pay and display machines is collected by

Contract Security Services Limited. The security company count the money and then
deposit the total in the council's bank account.

During a reconciliation of this system it was noted that the amounts banked by the
contractors differed to the amounts collected. After enquiry we ascertained that this
was because of the large amounts of counterfeit coins in circulation. The following
weaknesses came to light:

+ No evidence is available to the Council to verify that the coins collected by the
contractor were actually counterfeit.

» No evidence is available to support the amount of coins that were sent to the
Royal Mint for destruction.

There is a risk that the contractors could be underbanking and retaining the excess
cash. With no evidence of the coinage being sent for destruction the Council has no
way of verifying this.

Re-imbursements received
The Council's Car Parking service has identified that we have received three re-

imbursements from the contractors in respect of counterfeit £1 coins totalling £1,741
(all during 2009), this leaves a total amount of underbanking of £6,064.

We further understand that Royal Mint does not provide receipts, they simply send
back to the counting houses any valid coins, and consequently the Council has to
accept that the contractor is re—imbursing all monies due to us.

Internal Audit recommended firstly, that the contractor is invited to the Council to
discuss these issues and secondly, that the Council’'s insurers may be able to
recompense the Council for the lost income. After discussion with our insurers
however, it was found that the Council is not covered for this loss.

Conclusion
In our opinion and after careful consideration our overall conclusion would be that a

‘positive opinion' is appropriate and we further offer ‘adequate assurance’ overall. A
further report will be produced for the Audit & Governance Committee detailing the
outcome of our further investigations.

Car Parks
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SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN
- EXECUTIVE SUMMARY -

Introduction

An audit of the Council's Safeguarding Children arrangements was undertaken in
September/October 2009. This review was requested by the Corporate Director and
was added to the planned work for the year 2009/10.

Survey Results
Full results of our survey are appended to this Report (App 1C).

Overall, there was a very good response rate to our questionnaire with 54 survey
sheets returned (84%). Of those Council members and staff who returned their forms
35 confirmed that they talk with families and/or children in their homes or at Council
offices (65%) and 19 said they did not (35%).

Of those 35 Council members and members of staff who confirmed that they talk with
families andfor children in their homes or at Council offices 25 were aware of the
Safeguarding Children Policy (71%), 19 had been given a copy or had seen it on the
Intranet (54%) and 17 had read it and confirmed their understanding of it (49%).

The survey also asked whether if, in the course of their duties, Council members and
members of staff had witnessed a circumstance involving a child that might have
needed to be reported. Eight recipients confirmed this to be the case, with 6 of them in
the current year (2009/10). We can confirm that 3 were passed to the Head of
Housing & Social Inclusion as per the requirements of the Policy. The remaining 3
were dealt with in another way, and in our opinion this was satisfactory.

Actions
The Corporate Director will:

* Email the key staff teams who have shown a lack of awareness of the Policy
Ensure the ‘Safeguarding Children' DVD produced by DCC is shown to staff
members attending the ‘News & Views' briefings

* Ensure the survey results are reproduced within the Council's ‘Team Brief to
highlight the issue again

* Ensure the Democratic Services Manager (DV) updates the Members'
webpage with the Policy (and PJ to bring it to their attention)

* Update the Corporate Risk Register specifying the existence of the
Safeguarding Children Policy and the Council's adherence to it. (See
Corporate Risk Register, bottom of page 2)

Conclusion
In our opinion and after careful consideration our overall conclusion would be that a

‘positive opinion’ is appropriate and we further offer ‘adequate assurance’ overall,

Safeguarding Children
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Agenda item 13

Audit and Governance Committee

3 December 2009

Te

Corporate Governance activity report for the period 1st October 2009 to 31st
December 2009, including:

¢ Corporate Risk Management - CRMG Chairman’s Progress Report

« Corporate Governance Work Plan, incorporating the progress on NFIl and
other Counter Fraud Initiatives, and

« Annual Governance Statement Action Plan (Progress Reports from Heads
of Service and Directors)

Summary

The report and appendices outline the work undertaken to ensure the council's corporate
governance arrangements are effective and in compliance with its local Code of Corporate
Governance.

Recommendations

Members are asked to note:

* The Progress Report from the Chair of the Corporate Risk Management Group
« The Minutes of the last Corporate Risk Management Group dated 13" October 2009
= The Corporate Governance Work Plan for 2008/09

Members are asked to monitor and keep under review the:

=  Counter Fraud Initiatives including the NFIl exercise
=  Annual Governance Statement - Action Plan

a) Reasons for Recommendation
In order that the status and role of Corporate Governance can be confirmed at Member level
and to ensure that progress is being made on the Governance plans in line with Member
expectations.

b) Alternative Options
None

c) Risk Considerations

Failure to comply with our own Local Code of Corporate Governance
Failure to comply with the Corporate Governance 'Key Lines of Enquiry’
Failure to maintain our Use of Resources score

Failure to maintain our current CAA rating

Failure to progress the actions within the Annual Governance Statement
Criticism from External Audit and other external review agencies

d) Policy and Budgetary Considerations
There are no budgetary considerations
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e) Date for Review of Decision
N/a

Main Body of the Report

Introduction
This report shows the activity for the period October to December 2009.

Corporate Risk Management — CRMG Chairman’s Progress Report

The Corporate Risk Management Group (CRMG) has been charged with the task of bringing into
use a revised Corporate Risk Register (CRR). The CRMG is a member/officer group chaired by an
elected councillor and includes the Corporate Director and the Corporate Risk Manager.

The Corporate Risk Management Policy, Strategy and Toolkit have all been updated and the
CRMG has commissioned a new CRR (SPAR.net) which is now fully operational.

Population of the CRR is now virtually complete, where appropriate ‘strategic’ (corporate risks)
have been linked in SPAR.net to the ‘operational’ (service risks) and review dates have been set
up with an email reminder to the various responsible officers. The population and compilation of
the CRR has been monitored by the Council's Risk Manager who has made regular reports on
progress to the CRMG.

The design of the SPAR.net system enables easy access to areas for review of information and
the clarity of the screens help to ensure that both officers and members are able to enter and
browse the CRR without difficulty.

There has however, been an issue with regards Member access to SPAR.net in that aithough the
system is available in the Members' area of the Knowle offices, it is not available on Members'
computers in their homes. The Chair of CRMG requested that this issue be resolved and TS are
actively working on a solution that will overcome the problem.

At the last CRMG meeting members discussed the possible future role of the Group, the Audit &
Governance Committee and the Scrutiny Committees in the risk review process.

There was general agreement that the Scrutiny Committee could incorporate a review of risks and
controls into their overall review of Council functions and/or services. However, the CRMG would
continue to to review and challenge the risks and controls within the corporate risk register. The
chairman is aware that it will take some months for all members to become confident in using the
information included in the Risk Register and some form of training/familiarization may be
necessary.

The Chairman is however, pleased with progress and is confident that the Council will have a fully
operational CRR in use by the end of the year.

The Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Risk Management Group dated 13" October 2009 are
attached to this Agenda.

Corporate Governance Work Plan 2009/10 - Appendix 1

Please refer to the appendix, a brief summary of the work completed so far this year is detailed
below:

NFI| Exercise 2009/10

This exercise is co-ordinated by the Internal Audit & Governance Manager
who ensures login and password details are allocated to responsible
officers, monitors completion of the work and ensures the on-line database
is adequately completed with all relevant details.
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We have reported previously that the NFI (creditors reports) highlighted a couple of anomalies (a
duplicate payment and a sundry debtor overpayment). These have been dealt with satisfactorily.

The exercise is virtually complete in Housing Benefits, with a target for completion before the
Christmas break. Arrangements are being made to complete the online NFI database with case
outcomes. A schedule of action taken and savings made as a direct result of participating in the
NF! exercise will be presented to the next Audit & Governance Committee in March 2009.

Other Counter Fraud Initiatives

Our external auditors have given the Council’s Internal Audit & Governance arrangements a low
score in its UoR assessment. Part of the reason for this is that there has been limited pro-active
counter-fraud work carried out by the Council (apart from the NFI work detailed above and the
counter-fraud work carried out by our Housing Benefit Investigation Team). This situation has
developed over time, mainly because of the long-term shortage of audit staff available to carry out
the council’s audit plans.

Giving assurance on the Council's counter/anti-fraud arrangements falls within the remit of Audit &
Governance. There are various tools available for the Council to assess its current counter fraud
arrangements and to identify any gaps. Preliminary work has already started on this and we will
present a report to Committee on the results in due course.

Annual Governance Statement — Action Plan, Progress Report

The Internal Audit & Governance Manager is pleased to report comments from Head of Service
and Directors for each item in the Action Plan.

Legal Implications

None

Financial Implications
None

Consultation on Reports to the Executive
N/A

Background Papers

Corporate Governance Work Plan
Annual Governance Statement - Action Plan

CRMG Minutes L
Tanith Cox - 2687 Audit & Governance Committee
Internal Audit and Governance 3" December 2009
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EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

Notes of a Meeting of the Corporate Risk Management Group
held at Knowle, Sidmouth on 13" October 2009

Present: Councillors:
Peter Bowden (Chairman)

Ray Bloxham
Ken Potter

Officers Present: Tanith Cox — Internal Audit and Governance Manager
Diccon Pearse - Corporate Director

Apologies: None

The meeting started at 3.00 pm and ended at 5.15 am

Minutes of Previous Meeting
The minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Risk Management Group held on 2" September
2009 were confirmed as a true record.

Progress Report - Strategic Risks / Service Risks - State of Play

The CRMG discussed the progress of updating the corporate risk register and noted that it was
now very nearly compieted, with only one corporate director and a few heads/managers left to
complete their input of risks. The Chairman confirmed that he was pleased with this progress
and that the system is seen by the CRMG as a valuable tool to help manage the Council's
business.

The Internal Audit and Governance Manager made reference to the updating process and to a
supporting document (screen print of drop-down menus) and explained that most users had
selected the “working and effective” status for their actions, when in reality a more appropriate
status could have been “in progress” or “completed”. She drew attention to the ‘quirkiness’ of
the system and explained that the “working and effective” control status is set as the default by
the system, and this had simply been selected in the majority of cases by users. She also drew
attention to the relatively few controls appearing to mitigate the council’'s most significant risks.

Discussion ensued around the best way to review this in the future and how to encourage the
proper use of the corporate risk register.

Strategic Risks in detail

The CRMG were provided with all the current strategic risks that had been input into the system
by directors. There was a great deal of discussion surrounding the risk and control content and
how and when they would be reviewed. Discussions ranged around the possible future roles of
the CRMG, Audit & Governance Committee and the Scrutiny Committees in the review process.
There was agreement that the Scrutiny Committee could incorporate a review of risks and
controls into their overall review of Council functions and/or services.

Another possibility for review was thought to rest with the Audit & Governance Committee,
however it was suggested that closed sub-meetings such as the CRMG were the best forum for
discussing service risks with heads of service/managers.

There were also discussions around the CRMG's Terms of Reference and it was confirmed that
there was an expectation that part of the role of CRMG was to review and chalienge the risks
and controls within the corporate risk register.

Chief Executive: Mark Williams
Corporate Directors: Denise Lyon (Deputy Chief Executive) - Peter Jeffs - Diccon Pearse - Karime Hassan
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Strategic Risks in detail (cont’)

RESOLVED: Thatthe CRMG accept the updated system as a management tool
which should be used by the Council to manage its day to day risks,
this resolution will be passed to the A &G Commtttee for
recommendation to full Council.

Training meeting for A & G Members and other key members from Scrutiny
The Chairman was keen to ensure that the final version of the updated corporate risk register
was accessible and familiar to members of the Audit & Governance Committee and to other key
members from the Scrutiny Committee. Clir Bloxham raised the issue of accessibility to the
corporate risk register by Members and said that this had not been resolved by the ICT section.
The Corporate Director was asked to ensure this problem was resolved.

RESOLVED: That a familiarisation session would be arranged for key Members
to access and understand the different aspects of the corporate risk
register once it had been fully populated. This date was likely to be
1*' December, but this would depend upon the availability of the
training room.

AOB

The Corporate Director raised the possibility of extending the group to include other officers, it
was agreed that this would evolve over time. The Corporate Director reminded the group that
our insurers would provide a set number of days free of charge to undertake some risk work if
required.

Date next meeting

RESOLVED: that the next meeting of the Corporate Risk Management Group be
held on Tuesday 1st December 2009 at 2.00 pm in the Training
Room (date and time to be confirmed).
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT — ACTION PLAN

For the year 1% April 2008 to 31* March 2009

Governance and Control Issues ldentified

Council Members and Officers have been continually updated and advised on the
implications of reviews of the effectiveness of the Council's systems of internal control.
Plans have been devised and put in place to ensure continuous improvement. The
Council's annual review of the governance framework, including the system of internal
controls and associated reviews during the year, identified some areas where action is
appropriate to enhance the governance and internal control environment and ensure
continuous improvement. These are listed below, along with the proposed actions to
remedy or improve the position.

Plans and Business
Continuity Planning is
not adequate to protect
the Councit or its
assets.

statement (as at 24/8/09)

The DR process is still tenable for all the identified
core systems. The tape recovery process has been
used a number of times in the last 6 months to
recover files that have been inadvertently erased
and also to build a new Exchange server for email.

With the increasing amount of data stored by the
Council the back-up “window" had extended into live
operation times and remedial action was taken to
alter the back-up methods to compensate.

Work began in July to completely redesign the DR
and back-up systems to make everything faster,
easier to use, and more reliable. This involves using
the new links to Honiton Business Centre for data
transfer and setting up equipment that more closely
replicates the systems at the Knowle.

This is now in process aiming for a test no later than
March 2010.

Area for Improvement | Suggested Action Officer
Resp.
Disaster Recovery The Head of ICT has supplied an up-to-date position | CP

The Council's
Corporate Risk
Management System is
not up to date and does
not adequately identify
and manage corporate
risk. The corporate risk
register has not been
formally updated and
reported to the Audit &
Governance Committee
since March 2008.

Good progress has been made in populating the
new corporate risk register, the council's CRM
Policy, Strategy and Toolkit have all been updated
and the Council has offered refresher training to both
Council staff and Council Members. The Corporate
Risk Management Group is keeping the exercise
focused and on track.

DP

Internal Audit & Governance
November 2008
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Area for Improvement | Suggested Action Officer
Resp.
The Council’s Internal | The Council has conducted a 2-stage tendering DP
Audit Service has exercise to select a contractor to undertake part of
suffered from a lack of | the internal audit work plan. Seventeen potential
resources and does not | candidates responded to the initial advertisement, 12
have adequate potential candidates responded with Expressions of
resources to monitor Interest and 9 were invited to submit a tender. The
the governance Tenders were evaluated in November by a small
arrangements of the sub-group set up by the Audit & Governance
council Committee and two successful tenderers have been
selected.
There is a need to The review of Health and Safety compliance has | MR
review Health and commenced and has been included in the service
Safety compliance objectives and in PER's for this year.
throughout Street
Scene services. These duties were part of the Performance Officer
post (now deleted) and existing staff have been
tasked to find the capacity to move this forward at
the expense of other works.
Currently a Health and Safety procedures document :
is being produced. Once the various legislative |
requirements have been updated the associated |
procedures will be implemented and current |
documentation updated. This work will be built into
the ongoing work-load of the department and will be
on-going.
Failure to develop The post of Principal Engineer is currently on hold KH
Flood Alleviation and pending the outcome of local government review and
Coast Protection service transformation.
Strategy
This has serious work capacity issues in the delivery
The Strategy links to of Engineering services in particularly those
both national and associated with Land Drainage, Flood Alleviation
regional plans and and Coastal Defence works. Failure to fill this post
would draw down will mean the work will need to be prioritised with
funding for protection some work areas not being carried out.
schemes. Due to lack
of resources in Street The Head of Street Scene was asked for an update
Scene, (Engineering) - his response was that the situation has not
the capacity of the staff | changed.
to deal with these
issues is limited.
Internal Audit & Governance 2
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Area for Improvement

Suggested Action

Officer
Resp.

LED Budgets —
Planned Maintenance
budgets affected by the
shortfall in revenue
received from LED
(mismatch identified
between work
undertaken and amount
of money received from
LED - problem
compounded as figures
have been entered into
the signed contract).
Continuing to provide a
service to LED will
mean other
maintenance work will
remain outstanding.

Asset Management Forum will be reporting to the
Asset Management Group to resolve some of the
contractual issues on maintenance for LED .

KH/DB

Update
awaited

A programme of data
quality checking was
carried out by Internal
audit during 2008 which
found most Nis were
either incorrect or
needed remedial
action. The NlIs
requiring internal audit
recommendations were
NI 156 - Housing

NI 182 — Environmental
Health / Licensing

NI 185a/b CO*
Emissions

NI 184a/b Air Quality

NI 196 — Street Scene

The Audit & Governance Committee on 29"
September 2009 resolved to support the
recommendations made to Heads of Service in a
recently published Internal audit report to improve
the quality of data in published performance
indicators.

SMT

Internal Audit & Governance
November 2009
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Area for Improvement

Suggested Action

Officer
Resp.

An audit in 2007/08
highlighted the areas of
weakness with regards
the Council's Licensing
functions, in that there
are two which do not
operate consistently or
use the same computer
system. Internal Audit
recommended that the
two Licensing functions
be amalgamated, and
this recommendation
appeared on the
2008/09 Governance
Action Plan but has not
been implemented.
The issues highlighted
in the review of NI 182
are likely to have been
exacerbated by the
inconsistent
methodologies and
systems.

The majority of the licensing roles planned to be
transferred to the Licensing Service have now been
transferred. There remain a few licence types still to
be considered. These are less numerous in terms of
the number of licences/registrations and will be
transferred over the next two months or by the end
of 2009.

It should be noted that the Environmental Health
Service will retain camp site licensing, caravan and
camp site registration, approved food premises
registration, houses in multiple occupancy licensing,
food premises notification, cooling tower notification
and environmental permitting
registration/authorisation.

SMT

Internal Audit & Governance
Novemnber 2009
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